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Name of Receivership AvaHealth, Inc. d/b/a/ Key Insurance Plan 
Receivership Number 539 
Date of Conservation N/A 
Date of Rehabilitation June 2, 2012 
Date of Liquidation August 31, 2012 
 
Scope:  Pursuant to Section 631.398(3), Florida Statutes, the Division is required to prepare a summary 
report "containing such information as is in its possession relating to the history and causes of such 
insolvency, including a statement of the business practices of such insurer which led to such insolvency.” 
Such a report is called an Insolvency Report and must be prepared prior to the discharge of a domestic 
insurer’s estate. 
 
The authority under which the insolvency report is written is section 631.398, Florida Statutes which 
states as follows: 
 

 

Title XXXVII 
INSURANCE 

Chapter 631  
INSURER INSOLVENCY; GUARANTY 
OF PAYMENT 

View Entire 
Chapter 

 

631.398 Prevention of insolvencies.—To aid in the detection and 
prevention of insurer insolvencies or impairments: 

(1) Any member insurer; agent, employee, or member of the board of 
directors; or representative of any insurance guaranty association may 
make reports and recommendations to the department or office upon any 
matter germane to the solvency, liquidation, rehabilitation, or conservation 
of any member insurer or germane to the solvency of any company 
seeking to do an insurance business in this state. Such reports and 
recommendations are confidential and exempt from the provisions of 
s. 119.07(1) until the termination of a delinquency proceeding. 

(2) The office shall: 
(a) Report to the board of directors of the appropriate insurance 

guaranty association when it has reasonable cause to believe from any 
examination, whether completed or in process, of any member insurer that 
such insurer may be an impaired or insolvent insurer. 

(b) Seek the advice and recommendations of the board of directors of 
the appropriate insurance guaranty association concerning any matter 
affecting the duties and responsibilities of the office in relation to the 
financial condition of member companies and companies seeking 
admission to transact insurance business in this state. 

(3) The department shall, no later than the conclusion of any domestic 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Index&Title_Request=XXXVII#TitleXXXVII
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0600-0699/0631/0631ContentsIndex.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0600-0699/0631/0631.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0600-0699/0631/0631.html
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/Statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&Search_String=&URL=0100-0199/0119/Sections/0119.07.html


     Page 2 of 9 
 

insurer insolvency proceeding, prepare a summary report containing such 
information as is in its possession relating to the history and causes of 
such insolvency, including a statement of the business practices of such 
insurer which led to such insolvency. 

History.—ss. 28, 39, ch. 83-38; ss. 187, 188, ch. 91-108; s. 4, ch. 91-
429; ss. 2, 6, ch. 93-118; s. 385, ch. 96-406; s. 1351, ch. 2003-261. 
 

 
BUSINESS 
 
AvaHealth, Inc., was originally incorporated in Florida under the name Avalon Healthcare, Inc. on July 
8, 2005.1 Avalon Healthcare, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc. 
(“AHH”) ,2 was authorized, as of September 22, 2005, by Florida’s Office of Insurance Regulation 
(“OIR”) to operate as an accident and health insurer in accordance with sections 624.401, 624.404, and 
624.413, Florida Statutes.3 On February 26, 2008, Avalon Healthcare, Inc. filed amended articles of 
incorporation to change its name to AvaHealth, Inc. (hereinafter “AvaHealth”).4  AvaHealth had its 
principal place of business in Tampa, Florida.  

 
AvaHealth offered coordinated health insurance coverage and related services through a variety of plans 
for individuals and groups marketed through licensed agents and brokers. AvaHealth wrote insurance 
coverage exclusively in the state of Florida. 

 
OWNERSHIP, AFFILIATES, MANAGEMENT  
 
AvaHealth was a member of an insurance holding company system as defined by Rule 69O-143.045(3), 
Florida Administrative Code.  In October 2005, AvaHealth entered into a Management Agreement with 
its parent, AHH whereby AHH agreed to provide AvaHealth with executive management and 
administrative services, marketing, accounting, claims processing, claims administration, claims analysis 
and reporting and utilization management services.5 Pursuant to an agreement entered into on January 1, 
2006, AHH contracted with Health Network America, Inc. for the provision of third party administrator 
services to AvaHealth.6  
 
Expenses under the management agreement with AHH that were charged to administrative and 
marketing expenses totaled $.6 million in 2005, $2.8 million in 2006, $1.8 million in 2007, $6.3 million 
in 2008, $8.1 million in 2009, and $1.6 million in 2010. An additional $4,564,233 in management fees 
were paid to AHH during 2010.7 AHH became insolvent in 2010, and AvaHealth, Inc. paid its vendors 
directly for expenses incurred under the management agreement. 
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2005-2006 Simplified Organization Chart
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Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc.

 
 
Initial Board of Directors for AvaHealth8 
Charles Thomas O’Neill 
Andrew Bradshaw Cassidy 
Henry Harrison Neely 
Brett Geoffrey Baris  
Frederick Stuft Hammer 
 

Initial Senior Officers 
Charles Thomas O’Neil -     President, CEO 
Andrew Bradshaw Cassidy - CFO, Treasurer 
Henry Harrison Neely -          Secretary 
 
 
 

 

2010 Simplified Organization Chart

Individual Investors Not Owning > 2%
25.6%

Manning & Napier Fund, Inc.
9.5%

Inter-Atlantic Fund, LP
41.9%

Charles Thomas O'Neill
11.5%

Andrew Bradshaw
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AvaHealth, Inc.

Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc.

 
2010 Board of Directors9 
Charles Thomas O’Neill 
Henry Harrison Neely 
Richard Hayden 
Judith Anne Lyons 
Paul William Kowalksi 
Joseph Gauta 

Senior Officers 
Charles Thomas O’Neill   -   President, CEO 
Andrew Bradshaw Cassidy - CFO, Treasurer 
Henry Harrison Neely      -     Secretary 
 
 
 



        

On March 14, 2011, CUSP LLC, a Florida limited liability company, entered into a Stock Purchase 
Agreement whereby its subsidiary, Key Insurance Plans, Inc. acquired all of the issued capital stock of 
AvaHealth, Inc.10 The acquisition was approved by OIR via Consent Order (Case No. 116802-11) on 
June 14, 2011.11 Concurrent with the acquisition, AvaHealth, Inc. began operating under the name 
Key Insurance Plan. CUSP, LLC is owned by Integrity Health, LLC, Florida Health Finance, LLC, 
PASAN Health Administration Services, Inc. and Meditech, Inc. AvaHealth, Key Insurance Plans, 
Inc. and CUSP, LLC have one director in common, Enoc S. Martinez.   

 
 
 
 

    2011-2012 Simplified Organization Chart

  100%

   Key Insurance Plans, Inc.

  100%

AvaHealth, Inc.

CUSP, LLC

 
 
 
2011- 2012 Board of Directors 
Enoc Segundo Martinez 
Roberto Enrique Martinez 
Ernesto Urdaneta 
Karen W Connolly 
Barbara Roqueta 
Ricardo Di Campo 
Susan Elizabeth Griffin (resigned) 
Bruce Leon Carpenter (resigned) 
Bruce Frieman (resigned) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Senior Officers 
Karen W Connolly             -   CEO, President 
Roberto Enrique Martinez -    Treasurer 
Barbara Roqueta      -     COO 
Bruce Frieman – CEO (resigned) 
Bruce Leon Carpenter (resigned) 
Susan Griffin (resigned) 
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BACKGROUND/EVENTS OF IMPACT 
 
Since the start of its insurance operations in 2006, AvaHealth experienced a net loss almost every 
year.  Additionally, in order to maintain its minimum capital and surplus requirements, pursuant to 
section 624.408, Florida Statutes, it was necessary for AvaHealth to receive capital contributions from 
its parent of $300,000 in 2007 and $2.2 million in 2008.12  

 
On May 28, 2009, an independent audit report was completed of AvaHealth’s 2007 and 2008 
Financial Statements.13 In Note 8 of the Report, the auditors discussed AvaHealth’s plans to mitigate 
the negative financial trends experienced by the company. The report indicated that: 
 

These plans and actions primarily include significant growth in premiums, management of 
development and marketing costs including the ability to spread these acquisitions costs over a 
larger premium base, and the receipt of additional capital contributions. The Company’s ability 
to achieve profitability in the long term will be dependent on the successful implementation of 
management’s plans and actions. 
 

In August 2009, OIR completed a financial condition examination of AvaHealth which covered the 
period of January 1, 2008, through December 31, 2008. During the examination, OIR assessed the 
adequacy of AvaHealth’s management controls and the extent to which AvaHealth’s business 
processes might impact its future solvency. OIR determined that the prospective risk existed that 
AvaHealth would not “generate premium revenues and earnings sufficient to assure its future 
solvency.”14 
 
On March 26, 2010, AvaHealth, Inc. voluntarily agreed that it would not resume selling or writing 
business without the consent of OIR. On March 31, 2010, AvaHealth submitted its amended 
December 31, 2009, annual financial statement, reporting capital and surplus levels which were 
$1,491,151 below levels required by section 624.408, Florida Statutes.15 As a result, on May 5, 2010, 
the Company was placed into confidential administrative supervision for 120 days via a Consent 
Order (Case No. 110187-10-CO), pursuant to Section 624.82, Florida Statutes.16 The Consent Order 
was extended on August 18, 2010, December 7, 2010, and March 23, 2011, to give AvaHealth the 
opportunity to successfully implement and complete a corrective action plan approved by OIR.   

 
On June 14, 2011, OIR entered a Consent Order (Case No. 116802-11), whereby OIR approved the 
application of CUSP, LLC to acquire 100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of AvaHealth, 
Inc. for the benefit of CUSP’s subsidiary, Key Insurance Plans Inc.17  
 
On July 29, 2011, an independent audit report was completed of AvaHealth’s 2010 Financial 
Statements. The auditors found that AvaHealth had materially misstated its financial condition as 
reported to OIR as of the December 31, 2010 balance sheet and that AvaHealth had material 
deficiencies in its internal control structure.18 

 
On August 1, 2011, OIR entered a Consent Order (Case No. 110187-10-CO) extending the 
administrative supervision of AvaHealth for an additional 120 days.19 Although ownership of 
AvaHealth had changed hands, the company was not permitted to market or sell new policies.  On 
September 28, 2011, AvaHealth requested approval to resume writing business. OIR approved the 
request on November 23, 2011.20 From March 26, 2010, when AvaHealth voluntarily agreed to cease 
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writing new business without the consent of OIR until December 2011 when that consent was granted 
by OIR, the number of members enrolled with AvaHealth fell from 6,620 to 2,056. By the end of the 
First Quarter of 2012, AvaHealth’s membership had fallen to 1,849 members.21 
 
After reviewing AvaHealth’s 2011 Annual Financial Statement and its January 2012 Monthly 
Financial Statement, OIR determined that AvaHealth was “operating in a hazardous financial 
condition, pursuant to Section 631.051, Florida Statutes.”22 On March 22, 2012, OIR issued an Order 
(Case No. 124309-12) suspending AvaHealth’s Certificate of Authority and prohibiting AvaHealth 
from writing any new or renewal direct business in Florida based upon several violations of the 
Florida Insurance Code including financial impairment.23 The Order also subjected AvaHealth to 
other penalties and sanctions. AvaHealth requested a formal administrative hearing to challenge OIR’s 
Order and disputed the facts presented.   

 
On April 19, 2012, in response to consumer complaints and a subsequent OIR investigation, OIR 
issued to AvaHealth a Cease and Desist Order (Case no. 124967-12) stemming from a finding by OIR 
that AvaHealth had been charging rates far in excess of the rate authorized by OIR.24 A Final Order to 
Cease and Desist was entered on May 24, 2012.25 

 
On April 25, 2012, AvaHealth submitted its March 31, 2012, quarterly financial statement to OIR.26 
Based on the March 31, 2012, quarterly financial statement, AvaHealth reported capital and surplus 
levels which were $358,588 below levels required by section 624.408, Florida Statutes. As a result, on 
May 1, 2012, OIR sent a referral to Florida Department of Financial Services indicating that one or 
more grounds existed for the initiation of delinquency proceedings against AvaHealth.27  On June 4, 
2012, the Company was issued an Order to Show Cause, Injunction, and Notice of Automatic Stay for 
Purposes of Rehabilitation.28 On June 27, 2012, the Circuit Court in and for Leon County, Florida, 
entered an Order Appointing the Florida Department of Financial Services Receiver of AvaHealth, 
Inc. d/b/a Key Insurance Plan for purposes of Rehabilitation, Injunction, and Notice of Automatic 
Stay, effective July 2, 2012.29 As a result of the Receiver’s examination of AvaHealth’s books and 
records, the Receiver determined that the company was insolvent and could not be rehabilitated. By 
order of the Court, AvaHealth was subsequently placed in receivership for purposes of liquidation on 
August 31, 2012, and the provisions of the Florida Life and Health Guaranty Association Act were 
triggered.30 
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS AND UNDERWRITING RESULTS   
 
Selected financial data from AvaHealth’s Monthly Statement for March 31, 2012, and Annual 
Statement for years ending 2011 and 2010 are presented below: 
 

Assets 
   

 
As of 3/31/2012 As of 12/31/2011 As of 12/31/2010 

Cash  
                 
3,259,439  2,680,468  869,363  

Other Receivables 
                                 
-  165,791   579  

Total assets 
                     

3,259,439                  2,846,259               869,942  

    Liabilities As of 3/31/2012 As of 12/31/2011 As of 12/31/2010 

Accrued expenses 
                    
104,019   51,917  168,477  

Claims payable 
                 
1,683,459  1,683,459  2,663,216  

Claims adjustment expense payable 
                      
33,056  33,056  21,000  

Advance premiums 
                    
214,080  167,998  73,453  

Aggregate policy reserve 
                      
63,413  63,413   100,579  

Aggregate write-ins for other 
liabilities 

                      
20,000  20,000   650,000  

Total liabilities 
                 

2,118,026                  2,019,843            3,676,725  

    Capital and Surplus (Deficit) As of 3/31/2012 As of 12/31/2011 As of 12/31/2010 

Common Stock 
                 
1,500,000  1,500,000  1,500,000  

Gross Paid-in and contributed surplus 
              
12,917,000  6,807,000  6,807,000  

Aggregate write-ins for other than 
special surplus funds   4,800,000    

Unassigned deficit 
             
(13,275,588) (12,280,584) (11,113,783) 

Total capital and surplus (deficit) 
                 

1,141,412                     826,416           (2,806,783) 

    Total Liabilities and Capital 
and Surplus 3,259,439 2,846,259 869,942 
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Operating Results  
 

 Premiums Earned Underwriting 
Deductions 

Net 
Underwriting 
Gain (Loss) 

Net Income 
(Loss) 

2007 $3,415, 057 $3,449,692 ( $ 1 8 , 7 3 6 ) $145,795  
2008 $9,191,923 $11,733,437 ($2,528,974) ($2,479,374) 
2009 $6,901,283 $9,779,924 ($2,852,691) ($2,850,248) 
2010 $12,960,084 $15,783,942 ($2,823,858) ($2,815,632) 
2011 $6,252,692 $6,803,746 ($551,054) ($746,589) 
 
 
Ratio Analysis 
 
As illustrated above, AvaHealth incurred substantial underwriting losses. The underwriting losses 
experienced by AvaHealth are illustrated by three key performance measures for insurance 
companies, the Medical Loss Ratio (incurred losses divided by net earned premiums), the 
Administrative Expense Ratio (administrative expenses and claims adjustment expenses divided by 
net premiums earned) and the Combined Ratio (Medical Loss Ratio + Administrative Expense 
Ratio). 
 
 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 
Medical Loss Ratio 78.7% 62.5% 76.7% 55% 42.4% 

Administrative Expense Ratio 30.1% 59.3% 64.7% 72.5% 58.3% 
Combined Ratio 108.8% 121.8% 141.2% 127.6% 101% 
 
The Medical Loss Ratio is an indicator of underwriting effectiveness, premium sufficiency, and 
favorable claims experience.  
 
The Administrative Expense Ratio signifies the percentage of premium used to pay all the costs of 
acquiring, writing, and servicing insurance and reinsurance including commissions paid to insurance 
agents and brokers, training costs, advertising costs and other operational expenses. The 
administrative expense ratio measures operational efficiency in producing, underwriting, and 
administering an insurer’s business. According to the National Association of Insurance 
Commissioners and the Center for Insurance Policy and Research, the Administrative Expense Ratio 
for the Health Industry held steady between 11 to 12% from 2007 through 2011. AvaHealth’s 
Administrative Expense Ratio was consistently above the national average every year it was in 
operation.   
 
The Combined Ratio measures losses and operating expenses as a percentage of premiums earned. A 
ratio below 100% represents a measure of profitability and the efficiency of an insurance firms 
underwriting. High ratios usually occur because of underpricing and/or because of unexpected high 
claims. AvaHealth’s Combined Ratio was consistently above 100%. 
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REINSURANCE:  
 
In June 2011, AvaHealth entered into a reinsurance agreement with Star Line Group. Under this 
agreement, AvaHealth was reinsured against losses exceeding $150,000 for group policies and 
$200,000 for individual policies in any calendar year on any insured member.  AvaHealth’s Excess of 
Loss reinsurance contract expired on June 21, 2012.  The Reinsurer, Star Line Group, had offered 
renewal but at the time of the Receivership, AvaHealth had not confirmed renewal. Ultimately, the 
Receiver collected $19,000 on outstanding reinsurance claims. 
 
CONCLUSION:   
 
AvaHealth was in financial trouble for its entire existence and became insolvent, due in part, to 
inadequate rates, material deficiencies in its internal control structure, and material deficiencies in the 
operation of those controls.  
 
REFERENCES:   

                                                      
1 Articles of Incorporation for Avalon Healthcare, Inc. 
2 Florida OIR Examiner Pre-Licensure Memorandum August 26, 2005. 
3 Consent Order (Case No. 83208-05-CO), entered on September 22, 2005. 
4 Articles of Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of Avalon Healthcare, Inc. February 26, 2008. 
5 Avalon Healthcare, Inc. and Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc. Management Agreement. 
6 Report on Examination of Avalon Healthcare, Inc. as of  December 31, 2006. 
7 Audited Financial Statement for Avahealth, Inc., Year ended December 31, 2011. 
8 Articles of Incorporation for Avalon Healthcare, Inc. 
9 2010 For Profit Corporation Reinstatement. 
10 Amended Stock Purchase Agreement By and Between Avalon HealthCare Holdings, Inc. and CUSP, LLC. 
11 Consent Order (Case No. 116802-11), entered on June 14, 2011. 
12 Audited Financial Statement for Avahealth, Inc., Year ended December 31, 2011. 
13 Audited Financial Statements and Other Financial Information for Avahealth, Inc., Years ended December 31, 2008 and 
2007. 
14 Report on Examination of AvaHealth, Inc. as of December 31, 2008. 
15 Amended Health Annual Statement As of December 31, 2009, of the Condition and Affairs of AvaHealth, Inc. 
16 Consent Order (Case No. 110187-10-CO), entered on May 5, 2010. 
17 Consent Order (Case No. 116802-11), entered on June 14, 2011. 
18 Audited Financial Statements and Other Financial Information for Avahealth, Inc., Year ended December 31, 2010. 
19 Consent Order Extending Period of Confidential Administrative Supervision (Case No. 110187-10-CO), entered on 
August 1, 2011. 
20 Letter from OIR to AvaHealth, Inc. dated November 23, 2011. 
21 Health Quarterly Statement As of March 31, 2012, of the Condition and Affairs of the AvaHealth, Inc. 
22 Letter from OIR to AvaHealth, Inc. dated March 16, 2012.  
23 Order (Case No. 124309-12), entered on March 22, 2012. 
24 Cease and Desist Order (Case no. 124967-12), entered on April 19, 2012. 
25 Final Order to Cease and Desist (Case No. 124967-12), entered on May 25, 202. 
26 Health Quarterly Statement As of March 31, 2012 of the Condition and Affairs of AvaHealth, Inc. 
27 Letter from OIR to DFS (Referral) dated May 1, 2012. 
28 Order to Show Cause, Injunction, and Notice of Automatic Stay for Purposes of Rehabilitation. 
29 Order Appointing the Florida Department of Financial Services as Receiver for Purposes of Rehabilitation, Injunction and 
Notice of Automatic Stay 
30 Order Appointing the Florida Department of Financial Services as Receiver for Purposes of Liquidation, Injunction and 
Notice of Automatic Stay 
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TO:  File 
 
FROM: Ralph L. Byrd, Reinsurance Financial Specialist  
  Life & Health Financial Oversight  
 
DATE: August 26, 2005 
 
 
SUBJECT: AVALON HEALTHCARE, INC.  (“Applicant or AHI”) 
  Application for a Certificate of Authority 
  Date Filed:    August 3, 2005 
  Deemer Date:  January 30, 2006 
  Days in Inventory (as of 8/26/2005)  = 23 days   
  Days in Process     (as of 8/26/2005)  = 23 days 
 
   
 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

Type of Application:   Domestic Company Certificate of Authority  
 
Lines of business applied for: (0450) Accident and Health 
              
Main Administrative Office: 13719 Chestersall Drive 
  Tampa, FL 33624 
 
Type of Organization:  Stock Company 
  

 
PROPOSED OWNERSHIP, MANAGEMENT, ORGANIZATION CHART 

 
The Applicant will be a stock insurance company with ten thousand (10,000) shares of 
authorized common stock having a par value of $1.00 per share.  All of the issued and 
outstanding capital stock of the Applicant is owned by its parent company, Avalon Healthcare 
Holdings, Inc., which is owned by a limited partnership, Inter-Atlantic Fund, LP, and individual 
stockholders.  

 
 
 

PROPOSED OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS 

 

MM  EE  MM  OO  RR  AA  NN  DD  UU  MM  
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Charles Thomas O’Neill        -          President, CEO, Director 
Andrew Bradshaw Cassidy    -          COO, Treasurer, Director 
Henry Harrison Neely            -          Director of Finance, Director 
Brett Geoffrey Baris               -          Director 
Frederick Stuft Hammer        -           Director 
      

 
 

SIMPLIFIED ORGANIZATION CHART 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE:  INTER-ATLANTIC FUND, LP is comprised of four General Partners (Control) each owning 16%. The 
remaining 36% is owned by various Limited Partners (Non Voting) with none owning greater than 10% of the 
limited partnership. 
 

SOURCE AND METHOD OF FINANCING 
 
Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc. has submitted documentation of the purchase of all issued 
shares (100) of Avalon Healthcare, Inc.  for $4.8 million. The transaction was completed on June 
29, 2005 with $4.8 million deposited to a Demand Deposit Account at Bank of America in favor 
of Avalon Health Care, Inc. 
 
 

PLAN OF OPERATION 
 

Product Description: 
 
Avalon Healthcare, Inc., (“AHI”) will offer high deductible Health Savings Accounts (HSAs) 
and Health Reimbursement Accounts (HRAs) in conjunction with in and out of network high 
deductible PPO health plans. Created by the Medicare Modernization Act, which was signed by 
President Bush in December 2003, enrollment in HSA’s and HRA’s offered with high deductible 
health plans have soared. Initially, opponents claimed that these accounts would prove attractive 
only to relatively young and healthy policyholders thereby, raising the potential of adverse 
selection for more traditional health plans. Recent study has shown that roughly half the 

Individual Investors Non Owning  >
2% Inter-Atlantic Fund, LP Charles Thomas O'Neill

Avalon Healthcare, Inc.

Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc.

Andrew Bradshaw Cassidy

20% 50% 15% 15%
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enrollees were older than 40. Although the individual and small group market has accounted for 
the bulk enrollment, the large group enrollment rate is accelerating. 
 
AHI expects that the HRAs and HSAs will allow price conscious employers lower cost options 
for health coverage and a mechanism to help employees save money for non-critical health care 
needs such as doctor office co-pays, lab and hospital co-pays and deductibles, ancillary services 
such as dental and vision care and more. These products are financial instruments that help 
employees decide how much money they may need to offset healthcare costs not supported by 
their health insurance and then manage the money appropriately. 
 
The Applicant will execute a management and service agreement with its parent, Avalon 
Healthcare Holdings, Inc., for management and other administrative services. Health Network 
America, Inc., a Delaware Third Party Administrator, will provide claims functions for the 
Insurer. The TPA was admitted to Florida on July 1, 2005.   
  
Marketing – Avalon Healthcare, Inc. will initially select 20 plus key general agents to represent 
the company supported by 4-6 Master General Agents (MGA). They will provide the primary 
distribution channel for Avalon Healthcare.  AHI will concentrate on highly populated, higher 
income areas in key Florida urban markets at the outset with a controlled distribution approach 
using key general agents and brokers. The Applicant has indicated that Miami-Dade, Broward, 
Palm Beach, Tampa Bay, Orange, Naples and Jacksonville as initial target areas. 
 
The company will pay highly competitive commissions to all brokers who supply a broker of 
record letter. Commissions will be determined by market conditions and will fall within state 
required guidelines. 
 
AHI indicates it will utilize the latest technologies to become as highly automated on the process 
side as possible. Processes such as enrollment, product information and provider services will be 
available on the web. Other marketing programs includes direct mail, web based promotions, 
trade shows, print advertising and co-op marketing opportunities with physicians and hospitals. 

 
 

Reinsurance – The Applicant will contract with Pacific Life, Allianz, ING RE or RBS RE for a 
stop loss treaty with 20% coinsurance. The terms will specify $1,000,000 maximum benefit per 
member per policy year for claims in excess of the Company’s retention of $100,000 per person 
per Policy Period.     
 
Revision to Previous Plan of Operation – The Office of Insurance Regulation held a meeting 
with John Black (Representing Avalon Healthcare, Inc) and senior officers of Avalon Healthcare 
on July 28, 2008 to discuss the company’s Plan of Operation as submitted with the Permit to 
form a Domestic Insurer. During the meeting the Company was made aware that the Office had 
concerns regarding reference to the utilization of Associations and Small Business Groups and 
Payroll Companies (PEO’s) in their sales distribution. The Company advised OIR that they had 
considered these groups as potential modes of distribution but had decided not to pursue these 
channels. These aspects were deleted from the Plan of Operation submitted with the Application 
for COA. In addition to a revised Plan of Operation, a revised Management Agreement was filed 
with the Application for COA.  
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FINANCIAL PROJECTIONS 
 
 

($’000) Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Premium Written Projection (Projected)  (Projected)  (Projected)

Premiums Written:
   Direct $1,064 $11,230 $21,132
   Assumed 0 0 0
   Ceded 0 0 0
   Net 1,064$                  11,230$                   21,132$                   

Income Statement
Total Premiums 1,064$                  11,230$                   21,132$                   

Net Investment Income 50 120 195
Miscellaneous Income 0 0 0
Total Income 1,114 11,350 21,327

Accident and Health Policy Benefits 777 8,198 15,426
Commissions on Premiums - Direct Business 0 0 0
General Insurance Expenses 0 0 0
Insurance Taxes 19 197 370
Other Expenses 1,750 2,471 4,649
   Total Expenses 2,546$                  10,866$                   20,445$                   

Net Operating Income (Loss) before Income Taxes (1,432) 484 882
Dividends to Policyholders 0 0 0
Income Taxes Incurred 0 135 300
Net Operating Income After Income Taxes ($1,432) $349 $582

Balance Sheet
Total Invested Assets $3,799 $5,227 $7,178
Other Assets 49                         140                          221                          
      Total Admitted Assets 3,848 5,367 7,399
Unpaid Losses  120 355 660
Reserve for Life Policies 0 0 0
Reserve for Accident and Health Policies 360 1,295 2,440
AVR 0 0 0
Other Liabilities -                        -                          -                          
     Total Liabilities 480 1,650 3,100
Capital and Surplus 3,368 3,717 4,299
Total Liabilities & Surplus $3,848 $5,367 $7,399

Writing Ratio:
     Gross .25 : 1 2.42 : 1 3.91 : 1
     Net .25 : 1 2.42 : 1 3.91 : 1   

 
The analysis shown above does not reflect ceded premiums. The Net A&H writing ratio will be 
lower if premiums were actually ceded.  The Company must comply with the Risk Based Capital 
Ratio requirements defined by Section 624.4085, Florida Statutes. 

 
PAID REPRESENTATIVE 

 
John F. Black of Meridian Consulting, Inc. is the paid representative.  

 
ANTI-FRAUD PLAN 
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The Company has submitted an acceptable anti-fraud plan with the Bureau of Fraud. 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Background information on all officers and directors of the Applicant and any stockholder 
owning more than 10% interest and who exercise control over the Applicant has been received. 
Information developed on one of the officers was reviewed and determined not to rise to the 
level that would cause exclusion as an officer of the Applicant (MEMO to File 4/15/05). A 
Disclaimer of Control Affidavit for Inter-Atlantic Fund, LP listing the individuals having 
authority to exercise control over the Applicant has been received. All fingerprint cards have 
been processed and are cleared.  

CONSENT ORDER 
 
A nonstandard Consent Order is required with the Application for COA filing. The attorney 
assigned to this file is Carl Morstadt. The initial legal overview of the organizational 
documents is complete with no noted deficiencies. Special stipulations in the consent order 
include: 

• Applicant must comply with Risk Based Capital Ratio. 
• Applicant must comply with Plan of Operation as submitted. 
• Applicant shall maintain its principal place of business in Florida. 
• Applicant shall maintain sufficient and adequate internal controls. 
 

STATUS 
 
Review of the file has been completed and forwarded for further review within the Office. 
 



OFFICE OF2ISURANCE REGULATION

01500
FILED

KEVIN M MCCARTY
COMMISSIONER

IN THE MATTER OF

Application for the Issuance of a Certificate ofAuthority
to AVALON HEALTHCARE INC

CASE NO 8320805CO

CONSENT ORDER

2

HOLDINGS INC

THIS CAUSE came on for consideration upon the filing of an application with the

OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION hereinafter referred to as the OFFICE for

the issuance of a Certificate of Authority as a health insurer to AVALON HEALTHCARE

INC hereinafter referred to as APPLICANT pursuant to sections 624401624404

and 624413 Flodda Statutes to write accident and health insurance Following a

complete review of the entire record and upon consideration thereof and being

othevise fully advised in the premises the OFFICE hereby finds as follows

The OFFICE has jurisdiction over the subject matter and parties herein

APPLICANT will be wholly owned by AVALON HEALTHCARE

3 APPLICANT has applied for and subject to the present and continuing

satisfaction of the requirements terms and conditions established herein has met all of

the conditions precedent to the granting of a Certificate of Authority to APPLICANT as a
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domestic health insurer in Florida pursuant to the requirements set forth for such

licenUre by the Florida Insurance Code

4 APPLICANT has filed an application with the OFFICE consisting of a plan

of operation biographical information and other legal documents for the purpose of

obtaining a Certificate of Authority In making a determination regarding the issuance of

a Certificate of Authority to APPLICANT the OFFICE has relied on the accuracy and

truthfulness of the documents and reports provided by APPLICANT in this matter

APPLICANT represents that the initial application filed with the OFFICE and all

subsequent submissions and responses have been reviewed by APPLICANT and that

these documents as amended to date are complete and correct in all respects

5 APPLICANT is a stock company with an authorized maximum number of

ten thousand 10000 shares of common stock having a par value of one dollar100

per share It further represents that it will be wholly owned by AVALON HEALTHCARE

HOLDINGS INC AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC is owned by INTER

ATLANTIC FUND LP and individual stockholders

6 APPLICANT has made material representations that none of its

shareholders holding ten pement 10 or greater ownership and none of its officers

or directors and none of the shareholders holding a ten percent 10 or greater

ownership interest in AVALON HEATHCARE HOLDING INC or INTER ATLANTIC

FUND LP and none of their officers directors or incorporators have been found guilty

of or have pleaded guilty or nolo contendere to a felony or a misdemeanor other than a

minor traffic violation without regard to whether a judgment of conviction was entered

by the court

Page 2 of9



7 APPLICANT has provided a Disclaimer of Control Affidavit from INTER

ATLANTIC FUND LP certifying that no person with the exception of Frederick S

Hammer will exercise any control directly or indirectly over the activities of

APPLICANT or anyentity owned or controlled by APPLICANT and licensed by the

OFFICE Further no person other than those who have been identified will on behalf

of APPLICANT attempt to exercise any control either directly or indirectly over the

activities of APPLICANT or anysuch licensee without the advance wdtten consent of

the OFFICE The representations made in the Disclaimer of Control Affidavit are

material to the issuance of the Consent Order

8 APPLICANT shall comply with dsk based capital requirements as defined by

section 6244085 Florida Statutes

9 APPLICANT and AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC affirm that all

explanations representations and documents provided to the OFFICE in connection

with APPLICANTS application for the issuance of a Certificate of Authority including all

attachments and supplements thereto are matedal to the issuance of this Consent

Order and fully descdbe all transactions agreements and understandings regarding the

formation and operation of APPLICANT

10 APPLICANT shall comply with its Plan of Operation and supporting

documents as submitted with its application Written approval must be secured from the

OFFICE prior to any material deviation from said Plan of Operation
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11 APPLICANT represents that its initial capital of four million eight hundred

thousand US dollars4800000 has been funded by AVALON HEATHCARE

HOLDINGS INC

12 APPLICANT shall maintain its principal place of business in Florida and

shall make available to the OFFICE complete records of its affairs APPLICANT shall

also maintain its office records and assets in Florida as required by section 628271

Florida Statutes The physical form if any of the assets shall also be maintained in

Florida or in compliance with section 628511 Florida Statutes

13 APPLICANT shall file updates to its Holding Company Registration

Statement as required by section 828801 Florida Statutes and Rule 690143046

Florida Administrative Code

14 During the first three 3 years of operations APPLICANT shall pay only

those dividends that have been approved in advance and in writing by the OFFICE

APPLICANT shall maintain compliance with section 6244095 Florida15

Statutes

16 APPLICANT shall maintain sufficient and adequate internal controls and

supervision of any external contractors providing services in connection with the

insurance transactions of APPLICANT and shall further assume responsibility for the

contractors as they relate to any performance under serviceactions of said

agreements

17 Executive Order 13224 signed by President George W Bush on

September 23 2001 blocks the assets of terrorist and terrorist support organizations

identified by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the Treasury Department The
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Executive Order also prohibits any transactions by US persons involved in the blocked

assets and interests The listof identified terrorists and terrorist support organizations is

periodically updated at the Treasury Departmentswebsitewwwtreasqovofac

APPLICANT shall maintain and adhere to procedures necessary to detect and prevent

prohibited transactions with individuals and entities which have been identified at the

Offce of Foreign Assets Control website of the Treasury Department

18 APPLICANT and AVALON HEALTCARE HOLDINGS INC further affirm

that all representations and requirements set forth herein are matadal to the issuance of

this Consent Order

19 APPLICANT and AVALON HEATHCARE HOLDINGS INC agree that

failure to adhere to one or more of the terms and conditions contained herein shall

result without further proceedings in the revocation of APPLICANTS Certificate of

Authority in this state in accordance with sections 1205692n and 120606 Florida

Statutes

20 APPLICANT and AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC expressly

waive a hearing in this matter the making of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law

by the OFFICE and all further and other proceedings herein to which the parties may

be entitled by law or rules of the OFFICE APPLICANT and AVALON HEALTHCARE

HOLDINGS INC hereby knowingly and voluntarily waive all rights to challenge or to

contest this Consent Order in any forum now available to them including the dght to

any administrative proceeding circuit or federal court action or any appeal

21 Each party to this action shall bear its own costs and fees
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22 The parties agree that this Consent Order shall be deemed to be executed

when the OFFICE has executed a copy of this Consent Order bearing the signature of

APPLICANT and AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC notwithstanding the fact

that the copy may have been transmitted to the OFFICE electronically Further

APPLICANT and AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC agree that their

signatures as affixed to this Consent Order shall be under the seal of a notary public

WHEREFORE the agreement between AVALON HEALTHCARE INC

AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC and the OFFICE OF INSURANCE

REGULATION under the terms and conditions set forth above is APPROVED and the

application for the issuance of a Certificate of Authority to AVALON HEALTHCARE

INC pursuant to sections624401624404 and 624413 Florida Statutes is

APPROVED

FURTHER all terms and conditionntained henheby ORDERED

ORDEREDthisdayof 2005DONE and

Office of Insurance Regulation
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By execution hereof Charles Thomas ONeill as incorporator of the proposed
insurer AVALON HEALTHCARE INC consents to entry of this Consent Order agrees
without reservation to all of the above terms and conditions and shall be bound by all

provisions herein The undersigned represents that heshe has the authority to bind

AVALON HEALTHCARE INC to the terms and conditions of this Consent Order

Corporate Seal

AVALON HEALTHCARE INC

Print Namex

STATE OF ck

COUNTY OF

The feregonmentwasacknowledged before me thisl dayof 2005

e orahoryegortrustee aaorney inftNam ofperson

0mpanY name

Signature of the Notary
I I cssAooz I

I mm expires May 16

ntTyporpmmissof No

Personally Known orPu Identifition

Type of Identification Pmdud X

NOTARIAL SEAL

My Commission Expires
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By execution hereof AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC consents to

entry of this Consent Order agrees without reservation to all of the above terms and

conditions and shall be bound by all provisions herein The undersigned represents that

heshehas the authority to bind AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC to the

terms and conditions of this Consent Order

Corporate Seal

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

The goinginstmentws acknowlg before me this dayof 2005

by0 as
Nameofmon pe aulhityegoffi trustee aEorney in

for

mpany name

PrintTe orSp

Pemonally Known orPuced Identification

Type of IdenttionPmdud

NOTARIAL SEAL

My Commission Expires
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COPIES FURNISHED TO

CHARLES T ONEILL PRESIDENT

Avalon Healthcare Inc

Rocky Point Centre
3030 N Rocky Pt Drive W

Ste 800

Tampa Florida 33607

JOHN F BLACK PRESIDENT

John F Black Associates Inc

Post Office Box 14989

Tallahassee Florida 323174989

ROBERT A WILLIS DIRECTOR

Life Health Financial Oversight
Office of Insurance Regulation
200 East Gaines Street

319B Larson Building
Tallahassee Florida 323990329

CARL B MORSTADT III ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL

Office of Insurance Regulation
Legal Services Office

200 East Gaines Street
612 Larson Building
Larson Building 645A7

Tallahassee Florida 323994206

Page 9 of9









































































  

 
 
 
 
 
 

AVAHEALTH, INC.  

 

 

2011  

 

Annual Report  

Pursuant to Section 624  Florida Statutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

AVAHEALTH, INC.  

 

 

 

STATUTORY  

 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

 

 

 

 

 

December 31, 2011  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
 
     

  Page 

  

Report of Independent Auditors ………………………………………….... 1-2 

  

Statutory Basis of Financial Statements  

   

Statement of Admitted Assets, Liabilities, Capital and Surplus  (Deficit) - 

Statutory Basis  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ……………… .  

 

3 

Statement of Operations -  Statutory Basis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . …. . . . . .  4 

Statement of Changes in Capital and Surplus (Deficit) -  Statutory Basis   . . . .   5 

Statement of Cash Flows  - Statutory Basis . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   6 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements . . . . . . . . . ... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  7-19 

  

Other Financial Information  

  

Reconciliation of Differences  Between Financial Report and 

Annual Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

 

20-21 

Summary of Ownership and Relationships . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. .  22 

Accountants’ Declarations and Qualifications . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  23-24 

  

  

SUPPLEMENTAL  DATA   

  

Statement of Actuarial Certification . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  25 

Report of Significant Deficiencies in Internal Control  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..                                     26 

Notification of Adverse Financial Condition . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                              27 

Evidence of Adequate Insurance  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                     28  

Certification Statement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .                                                                     29 

   

 

 

 

      (i) 



  

 

 
                                                                                                                                                          12195 WEST LINEBAUGH AVENUE 

                                                           TAMPA, FLORIDA 33626  

                               

                                                                                         TELEPHONE: (813) 855-4461 

                                                                                                         FAX:  (813) 855-7536 

                                         WWW.WATERSCPAGROUP.COM 

 

   AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF   CERTIFIED                                                   FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED  

   PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (AICPA)                                                                 PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  (FICPA) 

 

 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders 

of AvaHealth, Inc.  

 

We were engaged to audit the accompanying statement of the statutory basis admitted assets, liabilities, 

capital  and surplus (deficit) of AvaHealth, Inc., as of December 31, 2011, and the related statement of 

operations – statutory basis, statement of cash flows – statutory basis and statement of changes in 

capital and surplus  (deficit) – statutory basis for the year ended December 31, 2011.  These financial 

statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.   

 

As described in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Statutory Reporting, the financial 

statements are to be prepared in conformity with the accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the 

State of Florida Office of Insurance Regulation which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other 

than generally accepted accounting principles. Pursuant to 624.424, Florida Statutes, the statutory basis 

financial statements should be prepared in conformity with the National Association of Insurance 

Commissioners Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual, subject to any deviations prescribed or 

permitted by the State of Florida, which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally 

accepted accounting principles. The accompanying Schedule of Reconciliation of Differences, is 

presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Office of Insurance Regulation, and is a 

required part of the basic financial statements.   

 

The scope of the audit was not sufficient to warrant the expression of an opinion. We could not obtain a 

signed management representation letter from management, a signed legal representation letter from the 

corporate attorney nor obtain signed approval of adjusting journal entries from management. The 

company’s lack of internal controls and frequent major changes in management also made it difficult to 

obtain sufficient information. 

 

The Company’s disclosures with respect to the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 

reasonable period of time are inadequate.  As discussed in Note 7 to the financial statements, the State 

of Florida Office of Insurance Regulation imposes capital requirements on insurance companies. At 

December 31, 2011 the Company’s minimum statutory capital and surplus was not in compliance with 

624.408, F.S. As discussed in Note 8, the Company has experienced operating losses and negative cash  

 

http://www.waterscpagroup.com/


  

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(concluded) 

 

 

flows from operations in five of the last six years. As discussed in Note 9, in 2012 the State of Florida, 

Department of Financial Services issued an Order to Show Cause, Injunction, and Notice of Automatic 

Stay for Purposes of Rehabilitation for not complying with the minimum capital and surplus 

requirements. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern.    

 

Because of the significance of the matters involved with obtaining information described above, we 

have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit 

opinion. We also concluded that the disclosures with respect to the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern for a reasonable period of time are inadequate. Accordingly, we do not express an 

opinion on these financial statements. 
 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors, stockholders and 

management of AvaHealth, Inc.  and for filing with the State of Florida Office of Insurance Regulation 

and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

   

 

  

Waters CPA Group, P.A. 
 

 

May 21, 2012 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 

 
STATEMENT OF ADMITTED ASSETS, LIABILITIES, CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) – 

STATUTORY BASIS 

December 31, 2011 

 

ASSETS 

 

ADMITTED ASSETS 

     

      Cash 

    

$   2,680,467 

Other receivables 

    
          73,994 

 

     2,754,461      Total current assets 

    

      TOTAL ADMITTED ASSETS 

   

 $     2,754,461 

 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

      CURRENT LIABILITIES 

     Accounts payable 

    

$      117,022  

Claims payable 

    

     1,683,459  

Claims adjustment  

    

          33,056  

Advance premiums 

    

        167,998  

Aggregate policy reserve 

    

          63,413  

Broker commissions payable 

    

          20,667  

Premium tax payable 

    

        120,364 

Other current liabilities 

    

          45,898  

Total current liabilities 

    

          2,251,877  

      Total liabilities 

    

          2,251,877  

 

CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

Common stock, $1.00 par value, 5,000,000 shares 

        authorized; 1,500,000 shares issued and outstanding 

 

       1,500,000  

Paid-in surplus 

    

     11,607,000  

Unassigned deficit 

    

   (11,113,783) 

Net loss 

    

        (746,589) 

Non-admitted assets & adjustments to surplus (deficit) 

    

        (744,044) 

      Total capital and surplus (deficit) 

   

              502,584 

      TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

 

    $      2,754,461  
 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS – STATUTORY BASIS 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

REVENUES 

     Premiums, net 

    

$ 6,241,577  

COST OF REVENUES 

     Physician and provider services 

   

     5,306,697  

GROSS PROFIT 

    

        934,880  

     

    

OPERATING EXPENSES 

    

    

Management fee 

    

      528,294  

Insurance premium tax 

    

         109,422  

Bank service charges 

    

42,440           

Rent 

    

29,652                    

Professional fees 

    

575,369             

Broker commissions  

    

138,320           

Administrative and marketing expense  

   

         260,451 

       Total Operating Expenses 

  

        1,683,948  

      OPERATING  LOSS 

    

     (749,068) 

      OTHER INCOME  

     Interest  

    

             2,479  

NET LOSS 

    

 $     (746,589) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) -  STATUTORY BASIS  

December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Common  

 

Paid-in 

 

Treasury 

    

   

Stock 

 

Surplus   Stock   (Deficit) 

 

Total 

   

  

 

  

   

      

Balances at December 31, 2010  $  1,500,000  

 

 $  6,807,000  

 

 $             -  

 

$  (11,113,783) 

 

 $   (2,806,783) 

            
Net Loss 

  

               -  

 

                    -  

 

                -  

 

      (746,589) 

 

      (746,589) 

            

Additional Paid in Surplus                     -  

 

    4,800,000    

 

                -  

 

                                 -  

 

                  

4,800,000     

            Less: Non-Admitted Assets and 

Adjustments to Surplus - 

 

                    -  

 

                -   

                           

(744,044) 

 

          

(744,044)         

   

  

 

  

   

  

 

  

Balances at December 31, 2011 

  

$  1,500,000 

   

 $ 11,607,000 

   

$              -  

   

$  (12,604,416) 

  

 $         502,584 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - STATUTORY BASIS 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

Cash flows from operating activities   

Net loss 

  

$          (746,589) 

Increase in other receivables                                       (73,415) 

Increase in payables 

 

                                      11,557                       

Decrease in accrued expenses             (7,436) 

Decrease in other current liabilities                                     (818,648) 

Decrease in claims payable 

 

     (667,701) 

Decrease in advance premiums                                                  94,545 

  Net cash (used) by operating activities:                 (2,207,687) 

  

  

    

Cash flows from financing activities 

 Increase in paid in capital 4,800,000 

Decrease in admitted assets and capital  (744,044) 

Decrease in reserve                (37,165) 

Net cash provided by financing activities                                               4,018,791 

  

  

    

Net change in cash 

  

              1,811,104 

    Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year                                                                   869,363 

    Cash and cash equivalents, end of year                                    $           2,680,467 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

NOTE 1: REPORTING ENTITY 

 

Nature of Operations  

 

AvaHealth, Inc., dba Key Insurance Plan (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) is an accident and  

health insurance company, licensed in the State of Florida by the Office of Insurance Regulation (OIR) 

on September 22, 2005, pursuant to sections 624.401, 624.404 and 624.413 Florida Statutes.  The 

Company was incorporated in the State of Florida on July 8, 2005 and is located at 5440 Mariner 

Street, Suite 101, Tampa, Florida, 33609.   

 

The Company offers coordinated health insurance coverage and related services through a variety of 

plans for individuals and groups marketed through licensed agents and brokers.  

 

Currently the services are offered exclusively in the State of Florida. 

 

The total number of members as of December 31, 2011 was as follows:    

       

            Individual    2,057         

  Group       47 

             

AvaHealth, Inc. was 100% owned by Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as 

“AHH”),  a Delaware corporation, through June 21, 2011. On March 14, 2011, AHH entered into a 

Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with Key Insurance Plans, Inc. to sell 100% of the stock to Key 

Insurance Plans, Inc., a Florida corporation. The closing date of the Stock Purchase Agreement was 

June 21, 2011.   

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 

Basis of Accounting 

 

The Company’s financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with statutory 

accounting principles (SAP) as required by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners’ 

(NAIC) Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual subject to deviations prescribed or permitted by 

the State of Florida Office of Insurance Regulation. The accounting principles applied in the 

preparation of the statutory-basis financial statements varies from accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  The departures from GAAP relate primarily to 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 
 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

  

the method of accounting used for certain assets and liabilities which are recorded under GAAP but are 

excluded from assets, liabilities, capital and surplus (deficit) for statutory purposes.  The statement of 

Reconciliation of Differences Between Financial Report and Annual Statement  on page 20-21 shows 

the GAAP presentation with the statutory adjustments, if any. Adjustments generally relate to non-

admitted assets of prepaid expenses, related party receivables, deferred tax assets and EDP equipment 

as follows: 

 

 Certain assets designated as “nonadmitted,”  principally past-due uncollected premiums and 

other assets not specifically identified as an admitted asset within the Accounting Practices and 

Procedures Manual, are excluded from the accompanying statement of admitted assets, 

liabilities, capital and surplus (deficit) and are charged directly to unassigned surplus (deficit).  

Under GAAP, such assets would be included in the balance sheet at net realizable values.   

 

 Cash in the statement of cash flows includes cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments 

with remaining maturities of one year or less.  Under GAAP, the corresponding caption of cash 

and cash equivalents would include cash balances and investments with initial maturities of 

three months or less.  

 

Deferred tax assets are limited to 1) the amount of federal income taxes paid in prior years that 

can be recovered through loss carrybacks for existing temporary differences that reverse by the 

end of the subsequent calendar year, plus 2) the lesser of the remaining gross deferred tax assets 

expected to be realized within one year of the financial statement date or 10% capital and 

surplus excluding any net deferred  tax assets, “electronic data processing” (EDP) equipment 

and operating software and any net positive goodwill, plus 3) the amount of remaining gross 

deferred tax assets that can be offset against existing gross deferred tax liabilities.  The 

remaining deferred tax assets are nonadmitted.  Deferred taxes do not include amounts for state 

income taxes.  Under GAAP, state income taxes would be included in the computation of 

deferred taxes, a deferred tax asset would be recorded for the amount of gross deferred tax 

assets expected to be realized in future years and a valuation allowance would be established for 

deferred tax assets not realizable.  

 

 Certain other reported amounts are classified or presented differently in the financial statements 

prepared on the basis of SAP than they would be under GAAP.  Statutory requirements require 

that the financial statements of the Company be filed with state regulatory authorities.  

Accordingly, the financial statements are presented in a format similar to the filed annual 

statement, which differs from the format of financial statements presented under GAAP.  

Required statutory disclosures that are not applicable to the Company are not included in the 

notes to these statutory financial statements.  
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

Basis of Accounting (continued) 

 

 

 Recoverable amounts, if any, on unpaid claims under reinsurance agreements are netted against 

claims  and claim adjustment expenses payable and not reported as an asset as would be 

required under GAAP.  

 

 Consolidation: Wholly-controlled subsidiaries are not consolidated for individual entity 

statutory reporting. Under GAAP, financial statements of wholly-controlled subsidiaries are 

consolidated with the parent. 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three 

months or less to be cash equivalents. Statutory cash equivalents have a maturity of one year or less. 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, time deposits, money market funds, commercial paper and 

certain U.S. Securities. As of December 31, 2011, $2,580,467 was held in Wells Fargo, Synovus and 

Regions Banks, Tampa, Florida, business checking accounts and $100,000 was held on deposit with the 

State of Florida. 

 

Solvency Deposit 

 

Pursuant to Florida Statute 625.041, the Company is required to maintain an amount on deposit to help 

secure payment of claims. As of December 31, 2011, a certificate of deposit of $100,000 has been 

assigned to the Office to satisfy this requirement. This amount is included in cash and cash equivalents. 

    

Prepaid Expenses 
 

Prepaid expenses such as insurance premiums and contracts, are recorded as an asset on the balance 

sheet and amortized to expense in a systematic manner based on the period of coverage. As of 

December 31, 2011, there were no prepaid expenses. This is a non-admitted asset for statutory 

purposes. 

    

Premium Receivables and Revenue Recognition  

 

Premiums are billed monthly and are recognized as revenue over the period in which the Company is 

obligated to provide benefits to insured’s. Any medical premiums collected in advance are recorded as 

unearned premiums.  Other revenue is recognized when earned. Unearned premiums received in 

advance as of December 31, 2011 were $167,998. 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 
 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

            

Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk 

 

From time to time the Company maintains deposits in financial institutions in excess of federally 

insured limits.  The Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 105 identifies these deposits as a 

concentration of risk requiring disclosure, regardless of the degree of risk.  The risk is managed by 

maintaining all deposits in high quality financial institutions. The financial stability of these institutions 

is monitored on an ongoing basis. Beginning December 31, 2010, through December 31, 2012, all 

noninterest-bearing transaction accounts are fully insured, regardless of the balance of the account, at 

all FDIC-insured institutions pursuant to Section 343 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and 

Consumer Protection Act. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.  

 

Credit risk consists primarily of its cash, cash equivalents, reinsurance recoveries and premium 

revenue.  

 

Policy Acquisition Costs 

 

Policy acquisition costs related to contracts such as broker commissions, premium taxes and other costs 

are expensed as incurred.  

      

 

Property and Equipment 

 

Property and equipment are stated at cost.  According to SSAP 16, EDP equipment and operating 

system software are depreciated using the straight line method over an estimated useful life not to 

exceed 3 years. Furniture and fixtures are depreciated according to SSAP 19 using the straight line 

method over the useful life of the asset.   

 

Depreciation estimates calculated for financial statement purposes are based on the straight line mid-

month convention.  There were no indications of valuation impairment during the year ended December 

31, 2011. 

 

Income Taxes  and Deferred Tax 

 

The Company is a C-corporation and calculates its state and federal income tax liabilities based upon 

the statutory rates currently in effect. It recognizes an asset or liability for the deferred tax 

consequences of temporary differences between tax bases of assets or liabilities and their reported 

amounts in the financial statements. Also, an operating loss, certain deductible items that are subject to 

limitations, and some tax credits arising but not utilized in the current year may be carried back for  
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

Income Taxes  and Deferred Tax (continued) 

 

refund of taxes in prior years or carried forward to reduce taxes paid in future years. The realization of 

deferred tax assets is contingent upon the generation of taxable income in the future and the current tax 

rates and laws in effect for the year in which differences are expected to reverse. Management assesses 

future taxable income and tax planning strategies to determine the ultimate realization of deferred tax 

assets. 

 

The Company is required to file statutory financial statements with the State of Florida Department of 

Insurance Regulation.  Under Statement of Statutory Accounting Principles (SSAP) Statement No. 

10R, Income Taxes-Revised, deferred taxes are limited to the admitted portion of the deferred tax asset 

up to 10% of statutory capital and surplus excluding net deferred assets.  

 

State income taxes are classified as taxes, licenses and fees in the NAIC Annual statement and as 

administrative and marketing expenses in the accompanying statement of operations.  

 

A.  Components of the maximum allowable 2011 deferred tax assets (DTA’s) and deferred  

  tax liabilities (DTL’s) are as follows: 

                                                                          
           Gross DTA’s                  $  2,850,000 

           DTA Allowance       (2,850,000)  

           Gross DTL’s                                     -                         

           Net DTA’s                       - 

             Nonadmitted DTA’s                      - 

             Net admitted DTA’s      $               - 

           

      Decrease in nonadmitted DTA’s   $               - 
 

B. Unrecognized DTL’s: 
 

                    There are no unrecognized DTL’s in 2011. 

  

C. Current tax and change in deferred tax: 

 

Current Tax: 

                                                                                      

Current year income tax expense      -        

Prior year over accrual                  -  

Current Income taxes incurred              $             -   
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

 

Income Taxes  and Deferred Tax (continued) 
 

 

      D. Operating loss and tax credit carryforwards: 

 

1.  As of December 31, 2011, the Company has approximately $11,584,751 of unused net 

operating loss carryforwards available to offset against future taxable income. The 

valuation account is estimated at $2,800,000. 

 

2. There were no income taxes incurred in the current year and prior years that will be 

available for recoupment in the event of future net losses.  

 

 

     E. Federal income tax return: 

 

An extension for the 2011 tax return has been filed.  

      

 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with statutory accounting principles and 

generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates that affect certain reported 

amounts and disclosures. These estimates are based on management’s knowledge and experience. 

Assumptions are also based on actuarially accepted quantitative and/or analytical methods in 

determining incurred and unreported claims (IBNR), deferred income taxes and various other accruals. 

Accordingly, actual results could differ from estimates. 

 

 

Medical and Other Expenses Payable and Medical Cost Recognition 

 
Aggregate Policy Reserves  

  

Aggregate policy reserves represent a reserve for unearned premium income, a reserve for rate credits, 

experience rating refunds and rate stabilization reserve. As of December 31, 2011 the aggregate health 

claim reserve was $63,413. 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

Medical and Other Expenses Payable and Medical Cost Recognition (continued) 
 

 

Health Claim Reserves Incurred but Not Reported 

 

The Company’s medical claims expense incurred but not reported (IBNR) are based on accepted 

actuarial methods and a review of the claims processed through March 31, 2012. A significant portion 

of medical costs include future hospital and future medical services payments. The liability for claims 

incurred but not reported is determined based on historical evaluations and statistical analysis of paid 

claims.   However, increased costs, catastrophes, competition, utilization and new governmental 

regulations can cause the actual health care cost to exceed the estimate. Although considerable 

variability is inherent in such estimates, management believes that the liability for unpaid claims is 

adequate. 

 
As experience develops and new information becomes known, the estimate and liability are continually 

reviewed and adjusted. An independent actuary issued a Statement of Actuary Opinion dated March 6, 

2012 on the adequacy of the provision. Based on the lag reports provided by The Loomis Company, a 

third party claims processor, to the independent actuary and used as a basis for the actuarial opinion, 

the health claims payable as of December 31, 2011 was estimated to be $1,683,459. 

 

The change in claims and claim adjustment expenses (CAE) payable at December 31, 2011 is as 

follows: 

                               

Claims and CAE payable at beginning of year        $    2,813,215 

 
 

Incurred related to: 

     Current year         4,921,518 

             Prior years            445,224 

  Total current year incurred                  5,366,742 

 

Paid related to: 

      Current year        (3,650,227) 

Prior years       (2,813,215) 

  Total paid                  (6,463,442) 

 

Claims and CAE payable at end of year                  $     1,716,515 

 

 

                                                                13 

 



  

AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

     

Risk Management 

 

General Insurance 

 

The Company maintains comprehensive general liability, directors’ and officers’ liability, 

property, and business automobile insurance.        
   

  
Reinsurance  

 

The Company reinsured certain “excess” risks with reinsurance companies by ceding portions 

of risks and premiums.  Reinsurance does not discharge the Company from its liability to 

members for defined coverages.  In the event that the reinsurance company might be unable to 

meet its obligation under the existing reinsurance agreement, the Company would be liable for 

such amounts.  Management only reinsures with highly rated reinsurance companies.  The 

reinsurer is obligated to the Company for the excess claim costs as defined in the reinsurance 

agreement.  

 

In June 2011, the Company entered into a reinsurance agreement with Star Line Group. Under 

this agreement, the Company is reinsured against losses exceeding $150,000 for group policies 

and $200,000 for individual policies in any calendar year on any insured member. As of 

December 31, 2011, the company has expected recoveries under the reinsurance agreement of 

$9,622. 

 

Statutory Reporting  

 

In 2001, the State of Florida adopted the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) 

Risk Based Capital Act of 1995 reporting requirements.  The State of Florida requires that insurance 

companies domiciled in the State of Florida prepare their statutory basis financial statements in 

accordance with the NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual subject to any deviations 

prescribed or permitted by the State of Florida Director of Insurance Regulation. 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

NOTE 3:  EQUIPMENT 

 

SSAP No. 19 establishes statutory principles for the recording of furniture, fixtures and equipment 

(excluding electronic data processing equipment and software that is addressed in SSAP No. 16), 

leasehold improvements paid by the reporting entity as lessee, and depreciation of property and 

amortization of leasehold improvements. 

       

SSAP No. 16 sets forth the requirements in establishing the amount of admitted EDP equipment and 

operating system software (net of accumulated depreciation).  The aggregate amount of admitted assets 

shall be limited to three percent of the reporting entity’s capital and surplus as required to be shown on 

the statutory balance sheet of the reporting entity for its most recently filed statement with the 

domiciliary state commissioner adjusted to exclude any EDP equipment and operating software and net 

deferred tax assets. 

 

                                  

 

  Computer Software $     1,312 

  Furniture and Fixtures        4,221 

  Less Accumulated Depreciation      (1,875) 

  Assets less Depreciation        3,658   

  Less Non-Admitted Assets      (3,658)  

  Admitted Assets $            0   
 

 

NOTE 4:  CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 

Amounts due and payable within one year are classified as current liabilities.  As of December 31, 2011 

accounts payable, including medical claims payable was $2,251,877.  

 

 

NOTE 5: Broker Liability 

 

Broker Liability 

 

As stated in Note 1 Nature of Operations, the Company entered into a management agreement with its 

former parent, AHH, in which AHH agreed to provide marketing, accounting and financial support, 

claims processing and administration, claims analysis and statistical reporting, utilization management, 

and provider member relations. Due to the insolvency of AHH, broker commissions were not paid on a 

timely basis.  The Company’s current parent, Key Insurance Plans, Inc., negotiated and paid 

outstanding balances with the brokers during 2011 and early 2012.  
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements  

         December 31, 2011 

 

 
 

NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

The Company was a member of an insurance holding company system when affiliated with its former 

parent, AHH, as defined by Rule 690-143.045(3), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.).  AHH and 

AvaHealth, Inc.  had certain common officers and directors in common. Andrew B. Cassidy and 

Charles T. O’Neill were officers of AvaHealth, Inc. and owners and officers of Avalon Healthcare 

Holdings, Inc.  

 

Key Insurance Plans, Inc., the Company’s owner as of 6/21/2011, and AvaHealth, Inc. do not have 

common ownership however; they do have an officer in common as reported in the Summary of 

Ownership and Relationships on page 22.  

     

Transactions with Parent 

 

"Related party" shall mean that the party is related by reasons of common ownership or control by the 

organization furnishing the services, facilities, or supplies. AvaHealth, Inc. was owned 100% by AHH 

until June 21, 2011. From June 21, 2011 on, AvaHealth, Inc. is owned 100% by Key Insurance Plans, 

Inc. 

 

As stated in Note 1 Nature of Operations, the Company entered into a management agreement with its 

former parent, AHH, in which AHH provided marketing, accounting and financial support, claims 

processing and administration, claims analysis and statistical reporting, utilization management, and 

provider member relations. AHH contracted with an unaffiliated service company to provide claims 

administration and assistance with member and provider relations. Due to the insolvency of AHH, 

AvaHealth, Inc. paid these expenses during 2011. 

 

AvaHealth, Inc. has a loan receivable from CUSP, LLC, parent company of Key Insurance Plans, Inc., 

Avahealth’s parent, at 12/31/2011 of $298,823.  This is a non-admitted asset. 

 

NOTE 7: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

 

Statutory Equity 

 

As of December 31, 2011, the company had 5,000,000 shares of $1 par value common stock authorized 

of which 1,500,000 shares were issued and outstanding. The parent company, Key Insurance Plans, 

Inc., is the sole shareholder.  Key Insurance Plans, Inc. made capital contributions totaling $4,800,000 

for the year ended December 31, 2011.   
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

NOTE 7: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued) 
 

The maximum amount of dividends that may be paid by insurance companies without prior approval of 

the Office is subject to restrictions relating to statutory surplus and net income.  Furthermore, in 

accordance with the Company’s Certificate of Authority Consent Order, during the first three years of 

operations, it may only pay dividends that are approved in advance by the Office. The company did not 

declare or pay any dividends during the year ended December 31, 2011. 

 

Pursuant to Section 624.408, Florida Statutes, each health insurer shall at all times maintain a minimum 

surplus in the amount that is the greater of $1,500,000, or 4% of total liabilities plus 6% of liabilities 

relative to health insurance.  During 2011, the Company’s statutory capital and surplus was $502,584, 

which was not in compliance with 624.408, F.S. Minimum levels of equity are required to monitor an 

entity’s solvency.   

 

According to 624, F.S., the Company is required to file financial statements with the Office of 

Insurance Regulation of the State of Florida.  The financial statements are prepared in accordance with 

statutory accounting practices (SAP) prescribed or permitted by the Office of Insurance Regulation.  

These financial statements are a departure from generally accepted accounting principles and the 

significant differences include certain assets (prepaid expenses and related liabilities, deposits, deferred 

tax, furniture, fixtures and equipment) not admitted under statutory accounting practices.  

 

Net Loss and Capital and Surplus of the Company on the basis of Statutory Accounting Principles 

(SAP) is as follows: 

    

Statutory Accounting Practices:  

 

 Net Loss $ (746,589)  

 Total Capital and Surplus  $ 502,584  

 

   

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 

  

    

 Net Loss $ (746,589) 

 Equity  $ 1,246,628 

 

See the “Reconciliation of Differences Financial Report and Annual Statement” on pages 20-21, for the 

GAAP, Statutory Annual Statement and prior year Statutory Annual statement. 

 

 

 

17 



  

AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

 

NOTE 8: FINANCIAL CONDITION, CONSENT ORDERS AND REQUEST TO RESUME 

WRITING BUSINESS 

 
Operating Losses 

 

The Company experienced net losses of $746,589 for the year ended December 31, 2011, a loss of 

$2,815,632 for 2010, a loss of $2,850,248  for  2009, a loss of $2,479,374 for 2008 and a loss of 

$2,343,939 for 2006.  The Company had net income of $145,797 for the year ended December 31, 

2007. The company received additional capital contributions from Key Insurance Plans, Inc. of 

$4,800,000 in 2011 and from AHH, its former parent, of $1,000,000 in 2009, $2,207,000 in 2008, 

$300,000 in 2007 and $3,300,000 prior to 2007.  

 

 

Consent Orders 

 

On  May 5, 2010 the Company was placed  under a Consent Order (Case No. 110187-10-CO) pursuant 

to Section 624.82, Florida Statutes  for the purpose of confidential administrative supervision for 120 

days. Consent orders may be extended in order for the Company to successfully implement and 

complete a corrective action plan approved by the Office of Insurance Regulation. Extensions shall be 

renewed in one hundred twenty (120) day increments at the Office’s sole discretion. The Consent Order 

was extended August 18, 2010, December 7, 2010, March 23, 2011 and August 1, 2011.  

 

 

Request to Resume Writing Business 

 

On March 26, 2011, AvaHealth, Inc. voluntarily agreed that it would not resume selling or writing 

business without the consent of the Office of Insurance Regulation. On September 28, 2011, AvaHealth 

requested approval to resume writing business. The Office approved the request November 23, 2011. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18 



  

AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Statutory Financial Statements 

December 31, 2011 

 

           

NOTE 9: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

 

 

Office of Insurance Regulation 

 

On March 22, 2012 the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation issued an Order (Case No. 124309-12) 

suspending Avahealth from writing any new or renewal direct business and from issuing any new 

policies in Florida. The Order also subjects Avahealth to other penalties and sanctions. The Company 

has requested a formal administrative hearing to challenge the Office’s Order and disputes the facts 

presented.  

  

On April 19, 2012, the Company was issued a Cease and Desist Order by the Florida Office of 

Insurance Regulation. The Company was notified that pursuant to Florida Insurance Code, including 

Sections 624.307 and 624.310, F.S., that it inappropriately implemented approved rate increases 

resulting in unauthorized rates in violation of Section 627.410(6) for the past 2 years. The Company 

was required to offer reinstatement to any insureds who did not renew based on the unauthorized rates, 

and to refund to its insureds and former insureds premiums received from the unauthorized rates as 

determined by the Office of Insurance Regulation.  According to management, all refunds due are to be 

credited to the insureds account in June 2012.  

 

On May 21, 2012, the Company was issued an Order to Show Cause, Injunction, and Notice of 

Automatic Stay for Purposes of Rehabilitation by the State of Florida, Department of Financial 

Services. The Order stated the Company did not comply with the minimum capital and surplus 

requirements of Section 624.408, F.S., and therefore was impaired. A hearing is scheduled for June 15, 

2012.  

 

 

Current Management and Corporate Attorney 

 

Current management (New CEO and CFO  April 1, 2012) states they have been making diligent strides 

in correcting the prior management’s acts and omissions relating to the management of the company, 

including those that may be in departure from generally accepted accounting procedures. 

 

Current management has yet to finish their own internal and forensic audit of the company as of 

December 31, 2011. As the current management was not privy to the information that has been 

furnished to Waters CPA Group, P. A., the current management cannot ensure the nature, the 

completeness, or the accuracy of said information to the extent it was relied upon by the auditors. 

 

Recently the corporate attorney has been changed. Effective as of May 20, 2012, the new counsel for 

the company is Stephen P. Walroth-Sadurni, Esq. 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
Reconciliation of Differences Between 

Financial Report 

and Annual Statement 

December 31, 2011 
 

     BALANCE SHEET 
          

                             2010 
    NON       NET              ANNUAL            ANNUAL                   

         GAAP      ADMITTED     ADMITTED  STATEMENT     STATEMENT 

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) $     2,680,467  $ 0 $ 2,680,467 $ 2,680,467       $       869,363  

 

Total Current Assets  2,680,467   0  2,680,467           2,680,467               869,363 

 

Other Assets 

Premiums Receivable (Note 2)  0  0  0  0                          0 

Deferred and Recoverable Taxes (Note 2)  0  0  0  0             0 

Reinsurance Receivable (Note 2)  9,622  0  9,622  9,622                          0 

Other Receivables      359,699    (295,327)        64,372  64,372        579 

Other Assets (Note 2)          0    0        0  0            0 

Premiums Receivable (Note 2)  0  0  0  0                          0 

Receivables from Affiliates  445,059  (445,059)  0                  0                          0 

             

Total Other Assets  814,380  (740,386)       73,994  73,994                       579 

            

Property 

Equipment (Note 3)  3,658  (3,658)                       0   0              0 

    

TOTAL ASSETS $     3,498,505   $    (744,044)    $     2,754,461    $ 2,754,461       $      869,942 

  

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $         117,022  0  $        117,022  $         117,022            105,465                   

Accrued Expenses  (Note 2)  0  0  0  0                7,436 

Health Claims Payable (Note 5)  1,683,459  0  1,683,459  1,683,459                2,363,216 

Claims Adjustment   33,056  0  33,056  33,056              21,000 

Advance Premiums (Note 2)  167,998  0  167,998  167,998                    73,453 

Premium Tax Payable  120,364  0  120,364  120,364                      0 

Aggregate Policy Reserve (Note 2)  63,413  0  63,413  63,413            100,579         

Broker Commission Payable  20,667  0  20,667  20,667            500,000 

Reserve Payable  0  0  0  0            450,000 

Other Current Liabilities   45,898     0  45,898   45,898              55,576 

Total Current Liabilities    2,251,877                  0     2,251,877           2,251,877         3,676,725  

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES _ 2,251,877                     0        2 ,251,877               2,251,877         3,676,725 

 

Equity (Deficiency) 

Common Stock  1,500,000  0   1,500,000  1,500,000         1,500,000 

Additional Paid In Capital (Paid in Surplus) 11,607,000  0 11,607,000  11,607,000         6,807,000 

Loss    (746,589)                0             (746,589)            (746,589)       (2,815,632) 

Retained Earnings (Unassigned Deficit)   (11,113,783)  0   (11,113,783)         (11,113,783)        (8,298,151) 

Disallowed Assets and Capital Adjustment  0         (744,044)           (744,044)             (744,044)                       0 

Total Equity (Deficiency)  1,246,628         (744,044)             502,584                 502,584       (2,806,783) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  

     (DEFICIENCY) $ 3,498,505 $ (744,044) $       2,754,461    $        2,754,461         $      869,942  

 

   20 



  

AvaHealth, Inc. 
Reconciliation of Differences Between 

Financial Report 

and Annual Statement 

December 31, 2011 
            

 

 

                 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

 

 
GAAP 

 

NON 

ADMITTED 

 

NET 

ADMITTED 

 

ANNUAL 

STATEMENT  

 

2010 ANNUAL 

STATEMENT 

Premiums, Net  $       6,241,577  

 

0 

 

 $       6,241,577  

 

 $       6,241,577  

 

 $     12,960,084  

Physician and Provider Services         (5,306,697) 

 

0 

 

        (5,306,697) 

 

        (5,306,697) 

 

        (8,099,518) 

Gross Profit              934,880  

 

0 

 

             934,880  

 

             934,880  

 

          4,860,566  

Operating Expenses         (1,683,948) 

 

0 

 

        (1,683,948) 

 

        (1,683,948) 

 

        (7,684,424) 

Operating Loss            (749,068) 

 

0 

 

           (749,068) 

 

           (749,068) 

 

        (2,823,858) 

Other Income and Interest                  2,479  

 

0 

 

                 2,479  

 

                 2,479  

 

                8,226  

Income Tax (Expense) Refund                         0  

 

0 

 

                        0  

 

                        0  

 

                       0  

NET LOSS  $        (746,589) 

 

0 

 

 $        (746,589) 

 

 $        (746,589) 

 

 $     (2,815,632) 

CAPITAL SURPLUS 

ADJUSTMENT                         0  

 

0 

 

                        0  

 

                       0  

 

                       0  

STATUTORY LOSS   $        (746,589) 

 

0 

 

 $        (746,589) 

 

 $        (746,589) 

 

 $     (2,815,632) 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 

 
Summary of Ownership and Relationships 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AvaHealth, Inc. is 100% owned by Key Insurance Plans, Inc., a Florida corporation. Key Insurance 

Plans, Inc. is 100% owned by CUSP, LLC, a Florida limited liability company. CUSP, LLC is owned 

by Integrity Health, LLC, Florida Health Finance, LLC, PASAN Health Administration Services, Inc. 

and Meditech, Inc. The Company, Key Insurance Plans, Inc. and CUSP, LLC have one director in 

common, Enoc S. Martinez. 
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                                                                                                                                                          12195 WEST LINEBAUGH AVENUE 

                                                           TAMPA, FLORIDA 33626  

                               

                                                                                         TELEPHONE: (813) 855-4461 

                                                                                                         FAX:  (813) 855-7536 

                                         WWW.WATERSCPAGROUP.COM 

 

   AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF   CERTIFIED                                                   FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED  

          PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (AICPA)                                                                         PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  (FICPA) 

 

 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 

AvaHealth, Inc.  

 
ACCOUNTANTS’ DECLARATIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
We have issued our report dated May 21, 2012 on the statement of admitted assets, liabilities, 

capital and surplus (deficit) - statutory basis of AvaHealth, Inc. dba Key Insurance Plan as of 

December 31, 2011, and the related statement of operations –  statutory basis, statement of cash 

flows – statutory basis and statement of changes in capital and surplus (deficit) – statutory basis for 

the year then ended. Pursuant to  624, Florida Statutes we make the following declarations: 

 
1. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP™, CPC, ABV, Engagement Partner, and the audit team with 

Waters CPA Group, P.A. are independent with respect to AvaHealth,  Inc. dba Key Insurance 

Plan and conform to the standards of independence of the profession. Waters CPA  Group, 

P.A. is a member of the Peer Review Section of the American Institute of  Certified Public 

Accountants. The firm is current with the Peer Review requirements and received an 

unqualified opinion.  

 

2. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC, ABV, Engagement Partner, is a Certified Public 

Accountant (CPA), Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE), Certified Financial Planner (CFP™), 

Certified in Financial Forensics (CFF), Certified Professional Coder  (CPC), Certified in 

Business Valuation.  Sheryl has over 30 years of accounting and auditing experience in the 

healthcare industry, as well as, governmental entities and insurance related industries. She is the 

recipient of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Governmental and Auditing 

Certificate of Education Achievement. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA is experienced in governmental 

and insurance compliance auditing.  

 

3. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC, ABV,  Engagement Partner, understands the annual 

Audited Financial Report, and the auditor’s  opinion thereon is filed in compliance with the 

Florida Statutes. The auditor understands that the Office of Insurance Regulation will be relying 

on this information in the monitoring and the regulation of the financial  position of AvaHealth, 

Inc.  
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ACCOUNTANTS’ DECLARATIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS 

(Concluded) 

 

 

   

 

4. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC, ABV,  consents to the requirements of Florida Statutes 

641.26 which require that the auditor consent and agree to make the work papers available for 

review by the Office of Insurance Regulation. 

 

5. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC, ABV,   has been licensed in the State of Florida as a 

Certified Public Accountant since January 27, 1994.  Her license number is 19412.  

 

6. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC, ABV  has not been disqualified as an independent 

auditor by the Office of Insurance Regulation.  

 

 

 

 

 
____________________________________________ 

WATERS CPA GROUP, P.A. 

     Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP™, CPC, ABV, 

     Engagement Partner 

 

 

May 21, 2012 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 
Pursuant to 

Florida Statutes 641.36, Rule 690-191.075 

December 31, 2011  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See Attachment A 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

REPORT OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL 
Pursuant to 

Rule 690-137.002 

December 31, 2011  

 

 

 
This statement serves as notice to the officers,  members of the board of directors and to the 

Office of Insurance Regulation  that Avahealth, Inc. has material deficiencies in its internal 

control structure. The Company materially  misstated its financial condition as reported to the 

Office as of the balance sheet date currently under examination and failed to comply with the 

filing regulations.  The insurer does not meet the minimum  capital and surplus requirements as 

outlined in Florida Statutes.  
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AvaHealth, Inc.  

 

NOTIFICATION OF ADVERSE FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Pursuant to 

Rule 690-137.02  

December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

This statement serves as notice to the officers,  members of the board of directors and to the 

Office of Insurance Regulation  that Avahealth, Inc. materially  misstated its financial condition 

as reported to the Office as of the balance sheet date currently under examination.  The insurer 

does not meet the minimum capital and surplus requirements as outlined in Florida Statutes.  
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AvaHealth, Inc.  

 

EVIDENCE OF ADEQUATE INSURANCE 
Pursuant to 

Compliance with Rule 690-131.069 

December 31, 2011 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  

 

Certification Statement 

December 31, 2011 

 

 

 

 

Certification of Officers 

 

We hereby certify that we have examined the accompanying financial statements and 

supplementary data of AvaHealth, Inc.  and, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the same are 

accurate and complete. 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________________Date__________________ 

Karen Connolly, CEO 

 
 

 

 

 

 

______________________________________________Date__________________ 

Roberto Martinez, CFO 
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OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION

KEVIN M MCCARTY
COMMISSIONER

IN THE MATTER OF CASE NO 11680211CO

Application for the Acquisition ofall the
Issued and OutstandingVotingSeeurities of

AVAIiEALIHINC a Domestic Insurer by
KEY INSURANCE PLANS JNC

CONSENT ORDER

THIS CAUSE came on for consideration upon the filing with the OFFICE OF

INSURANCE REGULATLON hereinafter referred to as the OFFICE of an application for

approval of the acquisition of all of the issued and outstanding voting securities of

AVAHEALTH INC hereinafter referred to as COMPANY a domestic insurer by KEY

INSURANCE PLANS INC hereinafter referred to as APPLICANT pursuant to Section

628461 Florida Statutes Following a complete review of the entire record and upon

consideration thereof and being otherwise fully advised in the premises the OFFICE finds as

follows

1 The OFFICE has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the parties to this

proceeding

2 APPLICANT has applied for and subject to the present and continuing

satisfaction of the requirements terms and conditions established herein has satisfactorily met
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all of the conditions precedent for the granting of approval by the OFFICE of the proposed

acquisition of all ofthe outstanding capital stock ofCOMPANY

3 APPLICANT is a Florida corporation that is one hundred percent 100 owned

by CIJSP hLC hereinafter referred to as CUSP a limited liability company 1he application

represents that CUSP has as its managers the following Individuals Pedro Caretto Maria Paez

Ernesto Urdaneta and Enoc Segundo Martinez The application also represents that Bruce

Frieman is a manager at large for CUSP Said representations are material to the issuance of this

Consent Order

4 COMPANY is a licensed life and health insurer domiciled in the state of Florida

and is one hundred percent 100 owned by AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC

hereinafter refereed to as ANH or SELLER a Florida corporation

5 On March 14 2011 CUSP entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with

SELLER which was subsequently amended and restated and filed with the OFFICE on May 27

2011 whereby CUSP or its designee would acquire all of the issued and outstanding capital

stock of COMPANY CUSP has represented that its designee shall be APPLICANT The

aforementioned representation is material to the issuance of this Consent Order Information is

missing front Section 24vii Schedule A and the Disclosure Schedule that form the Amended

and Kestated Stock Purchase Agreement APPLICANT shall submit an executed copy of the

Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement to the OFFICE for the OFFICEsreview

within three 3 business days from the closing of the acquisition of COMPANY by the

APPLICANT The executed Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement submitted to the

OFFICE shall contain the missing information within Section 24 vii Schedule A the

Disclosure Schedule and any other schedules exhibits or related documents that effectuate the
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Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement APPLICANT SELLER and COMPANY

agree that the OFFICES approval of the acquisition of COMPANY by APPLICANT is

conditioned upon the OFFICESreceipt and acceptance of the executed Amended and Restated

Stock Purchase Agreement APPLICANT SELLER and COMPANY further agree that this

Consent Order shall be deemed void should the OFFICE find the executed Amended and

j Restated Stock Purchase Agreement to be unacceptable

b Pursuant io Schedule 22 of the Amended and Restated Stock Purchase

Agreement the liability of APPLICANT is limited however APPLICANT agrees that it is

acquiring all of the issued and capital stock of COMPANY and the aforementioned Liability

imitation shall oirly serve to reduce the adjusted purchase price of COMPANY APPLICANT

and CUSP agree that APPLICANT shalt be responsible for alt liabilities ofany kind on behalf

ofCOMPANY and APPLICANT shall pay all Jegitlmate liabilities ofCOMPANY in a timely

manner regardless ofany reimbursement it may or may not receive pursuant to Schedule 22 of

the Amended and Restated Stock Punhase Agreement Additionally the parties agree that the

purchase price ofthe COMPANY shall be paid by CUSP or APPLICANT

7 Concurrent with the acquisition the application represents that COMPANY shall

change its name to Key Insurance Plan Inc Final approval of the name change is subject to

the receipt ofa Certificate of Status issued by the Florida Office of the Secretary of State

reflecting the name chaige as well as any other required documentation to validate a name

change

8 APPLICANT and CUSP have made material representations that none of their

officers directors managers and shareholders holding five percent 5 or greater ownership

interest and none of thepostacquisition officers and directors of COMPANY have been found
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guilty of or have pleaded guilty or nolo contendere to a felony or a misdemeanor other than a

minor traffic violation without regard to whether a judgment of conviction was entered by the

Court

9 APPLICANT and CUSP represent that they have with the exception of Enoc

Segundo Martinez submitted complete background urformation on each ofthe persons described

in paragraph eight 8 above and that if such material information has not been provided any

such individual shall be removed within thirty 30 days of receipt of notification from the

OFFICE

10 APPLICANT andor CUSP shall submit or cause to be submitted to the OFFICE

a biographical affidavit authority for release of information form finger print cards and

background investigative report for Enoc Segundo Martinez within thirty 30 days of the date of

the execution of this Consent Order If the background information for Enoc Segundo Martinez

biographical affidavit authority for release of information form fingerprint cards background

investigative report fizrnished to the OFFICE or other sources utilized by the OFFICE in its

investigation process xeveal the representations regarding Enoc Segundo Martinez in paragraph

eight 8 above are inaccurate Enoc Segundo Martinez shall be removed within thirty 30 days

after notif cation by the OFFICE and replaced with a person acceptable to the OFFICE

11 APPLICANT and CUSP agree that upon receipt of such notification from the

OFFICE pursuant to pazagraphs rune 9 and ten 10 above if APPLICANT andor CUSP does

not timely take the required corrective action APPLICANT andor CUSP agree that such failure

to act would constitute an immediate danger to the public and the0FICE may immediately

suspend or revoke the Certificate of Authority of COMPANY without further proceedings

pursuant to Sections 1205692nand 120600 Florida Statutes
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2 APPLICANT has filed and the01FICEhas relied upon the repxesentations in the

Plan of Operation and the Plan of Operations supporting documents shat APPLICANT

submitted with the application Prior written approval must be secured from the OFFCEprior to

any material deviation from said Panof Operation including expansion into any other state

13 As required by Section 624424Ilorida Statutes COMPANY has not filed

complete audited financial reports for 2009 or 2010 Therefore COMPANY shall file with the

OFFICE within sixty 60 days from the closing of the acquisition of COMPANY by

APPLICANT a complete audited financial report pursuant to Section 624424 Florida Statutes

for the year ended December 3l 2010 The report shall include but not be limited to art

independent financial audit as of December 31 2010 Further COMPANY shall not market or

enroll any new business until the 2010 independent financial audit has been 61ed with the

OFFICE and the OFFICE has provided written approval to resume marketing and enrollment

4 COMPANY shall amend andlor complete its 2010 Health Blank Financial

Statement that was filed with the National Association of Insurance Commissioners including

all related reports and documents to be consistent with the financial audit referenced in

paragraph thirteen 13 above Such amendment shall be filed with the National Association of

Insurance Commissioners and the OFFICEwithin ten 10 days of the filing of the financial

audit referenced in paragraph thirteen 13 above with the OFFICE

l5 APPLICANT represents that the information and documentation provided to the

OFFICE accurately and completely describe all transactions and agreements pertaining to the

acquisition and the future activities ofAPPLICANT and COMPANY APPLICANT represents

that there are no other agreements written or oral related to consideration io the SELLERS or

related to the management of the COMPANY that have not been provided to the OFFICE
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16 APPLICANT and SELLER agree to obtain written approval from the OFFICE

prior to any material changes made to the Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement

from the date it was submitted to the OFFICE to the closing date of the acquisition of

COMPANY by APPLICANT

17 APPLICANT andor COMPANY shall provide to the OFFICE an acceptable

executed disaster eoordinationresponse plan within thirty 30 days of the date of the execution

ofthis Consent Order

18 APPLICANT shall provide evidence of a four million five hundred thousand

USDollars4500000 capital infusion into COMPANY within tluee3 business days ofthe

closing ofthe acquisition ofCOMPANY by the APPLICANT

19 APPLICANT SELLER and COMPANY agree that this Conscnt Order shall be

deemed void should closing not take place within five S business days from the date of the

execution of this Consent Order

20 APPLICANT has filed pro forma financial statements for COMPANY that

indicate that in addition to the capital infusion referenced in paragraph eighteen 18 above

APPLICANT will need to provide additional capital infusions into COMPANY Without said

capital infusions the pro formasreflect that COMPANY would be both impaired pursuant to

Section 624408 Florida Statutes and in noncompliance with the writing ratio requirements

outlined in Section 6244095 Florida Statutes CUSP shall provide additional capital infusions

as necessary in order to maintain compliance with Florida Statutes Said capital infusions are

material to the approval ofthis transaction

21 COMPANY shall file with the OFFICE quarterly and annual financial statements

in accordance with Section 624424 Florida Statutes COMPANY shall file monthly financial
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i
statements until fitrtter notice from the OFFICh The monthly financial statements arc due on

i or before the twentyfifth 25x day ofthe following month from the period ending date 1he

monthly financial statements shall include the Jurat page Assets Liabilities Capital and

Surplus Statement ofRevenue and Expenses Cash Flow and Exhibit ofPremiums Enrollment

and Utilization The Statement of Revenue and Expenses and Cash Flow shall be filed on a

cumulative yeartodate basis for monthly statements All statements shall be in the current

National Association of Insurance Commissioners form The COMPANY may petition the

OFFICE to release COMPANY from its obligation to file monthly financlal statements The

OFFICE shall not unreasonably deny COMPANYSpetition regarding monthly financial

statement requirements

22 COMPANY is subject to the holding company registration requirements of Rule

690143045 through Kule 690143047 Florida Administrative Code COMPANY shall file a

holding company registration statement with the OFFICE withinfifteen15 days after the end

of the month in which COMPANY is acquired by APPLICANT COMPANY shall keep the

holding company registration statement current Affiliates shall mean any entities defined by
Rule690143045Florida Administrative Code and includes CUSP LLC

23 COMPANY shall comply with Section 628371 Florida Statutes and Rule 690

143047 Florida Administrative Code as relates to the payment of any dividends

24 COMPANY shall obtain written approval from the OFFICE prior to making any

loans or cash infusions to affiliates

25 Within sixty 60 days from the date of the execution of this Consent Order

COMPANY shall file with the Division of Insurance Fraud Department of Financial Services
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an acceptable update to its antifraud plan pursuant to Section 6269891 Florida Statutes and

Rule 69D2 Florida Administrative Code

26 COMPANY shall submit all management contracts administrative service

contracts provider contracts and affiliated contracts as well as amendments to such contracts

to the OFFICE for written approval prior to the execution andor cansumrnation of such

contract

27 The deadlines set forth in this Consent Order may be extended by written

approval of the OFFICE Additionally the various repoting requirements and any other

provision or requirement set forth in this Consent Order may be altered or terminated by written

approval of the OFFICE Approval of any deadline extension is subject to statutory or

administrative regulation limitations

28 Approval of this application does not alter or vacate any existing Consent

Orders or corrective action plans that may have been entered into or between the OFFLCE

and COMPANY except to theextent that the terms ofprior Consent Orders or corrective action

plans conflict with the terms ofthis Consent Order

29 APPLICANT CUSP and SELLER affirm and represent that all requirements set

forth herein and all statements explanations representations and documents provided io the

OFFICE in connection with the application including all attachments and supplements thereto

are material to the issuance of this Consent Order APPLICANT CUSP and SELLIiR further

affirm and represent that the information documents and explanations provided to the OFFICE

are true and fully describe all transactions agreements and undertakings with regard to the

acquisition and future operation of COMPANY
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30 Executive Order 13224 signed by President George W Bush on September 23

2001 blocks the assets of terrorists and terrorist support organizations identified by the United

StateIepalUnent of the Treasury Office of Foreign Assets Control 1he Executive Order also

prohibits any transactions by USpersons involved in the blocked assets and interests The list

of identified terrorists and terrorist support organizations is periodically updated at the Treasury

DepartmentsOffice ofForeign Assess Control websitehttpwwwtreasbovofacCOMPANY

shall maintain and adhere to procedures necessary to detect atdprevent prohibited transactions

with individuals and entities which have been Identified at the Treasury DepartmentsOffice off

Foreign Assets Control website

31 APPLICANT CUSP SELLER andor COMPANY shall report to the OFFICE

within sixty 60 days from the date of the execution of this Consent Order a certification

evidencing compliance with all of the requirements of this Consent Order Any exceptions shall

be so noted and contained in the certification Exceptions noted in the certification shall also

include a timeline defining when the outstanding requirements of the Consent Order will be

complete Said certification shall be submitted to the OFFICE via electronic mail and directed to

the attention of the Assistant General Counsel representing the OFFLCE in this matter and as

named in this Consent Order

32 APPLICANT CUSP SELLER and COMPANY agree that failure to adhere to

one or more of the terms and conditions contained herein shall result without further

proceedings in the revocation of COMPANYs Certificate of Authority in this state in

accordance with Sections 1205692nand 120606 Florida Statutes

33 Each party to this action shall bear its own costs and fees
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34 APPLICANT CUSP SELLER and COMPANY expressly waive a hearing in this

matter the making of Findings of Pact and Conclusions of Law by the OIFICE and all further

and other proceedings herein to which panties tray be entitled by law or rules of the OFFICE

APPLICANT CUSP SELLER and COMPANY hereby knowingly and voluntarily waive all

rights to challenge or to contest this Consent Order in any forum now or in the future available

to it including the right to any administrative proceeding circuit or federa court action or any

appeal

35 The parties agree that this Consent Order shall be deemed to be executed when

the OFFICE has executed a copy of this Consent Order bearing the signature of APPLICANT

CUSP SELLER and COMPANY or its authorized representatives notwithstanding the fact that

the copy tnay have been transmitted to the OFFICE electronically Further APPLICANT CUSP

SELLER and CUMPANY agree that the signatures as affixed to this Consent Order shall be under

the seal of a Notary Public
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WHEREFORE subject to the teens and conditions sct forth above the OFFICE hereby

approves the application for the acquisition of one hundred percent 100 of the issued and

outstanding capital stock of AVAHEALTH INC by KEY INSURANCE PLANS INC and

subsequent to the effecrive dale of the acquisition the name change ofAVAHEALlHINC to

KEY INSURANCI PLAN INC By approving this transaction the OFFICE does not approve

as part of this transaction any administrative management provider or affiliate contracts

submitted with theapplication

FURTHER all terms and conditions contained herein are hereby ORDERED

DONE and ORDERED this ay of 2011

r

i

Kevin M McCaEy Commissioner
Office of insurance Regulation
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By execution hereby KEY 1N5Ul2ANCE PLANS TNCconsents bo entry ofthis Consstit
Order agrees without reservation to all ofthe above terms and conditions and sha11 be bound by
all provisions herein The undersigned represents that helshe has the authority to bind KEY

INSURANCE PLANS1NCtothe terms and conditions of this Consent Order

KEY INS CEP INC

sy

Print Name 3RUCE FRTEMAN

Corporate Seal Title CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Date JUNE 1 3 2 01 1

On before me
Ly

personaly appeared

v personally known to me ar

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to

the within instrument and acknowledged to me that helshe executed the same in hisher

authorized capacity and that by hisher signature on the instrument the person or the entity upon

behalfwhich the person acted executed the instrument
VL

Subscribed and sworn tobfore me thisTday of n

ignature ofNotary

My Commission Expires

2011

NOTARIAL SEAL

ANNE WESTLEI
NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF FLORIDA

Comrtfii EEOb3808

Expires492015
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By execution hereby CUSP LLC consents to entry ofthis Consent Order agrees without
reservation to all of the above terms and conditions and shall be bound by all provisions herein
The undersigned represents that heshe has the authority to bind Ci7SP LLC to the terms and

conditions of this Consent Order

CU

By

Pri

Corporate Seal

On G 3 before me t 6
eraonall aradP Y aPPe

ra y personally known to me or

proved to meon the basis ofsatisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to

the within instrument and acknowledged to the that heshe executed the same in hisher

authorized capacity and that by hisher signature on the instrument the person or the entity upon

behalf which the person acted executed the instrument

Subscribed anavorn to bgfoerr this 13day o

Signature

2011

NOTARIAL SEAL
ofNotary Public

My Commission Expixes
ANNE WESTLEY

NOTARY PUBLIC
STATE OF FLORIDA

Comm EE053808

Expires 1192015
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Sy execution hereof AVALON HEALTHCARE HOLDINGS INC consents to entry of
this Consent Order agrees without reservation to all ofthe above terms and conditions and shall
be bound by a11 provisions herein The undersigned represents thathe or she has the authority to
bind AVALON HEALTH HOLDINGSINC to the terms and conditions oftins Consent Order
and haspersonal knowledge ofthe application and the information provided therein

corporate seal

AVAL013HFALTHCARE

By

Print Name

Title

Date

i r

r
11 l

Oa Jl before me Y 0 e personally appeared

personally known to me or

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to

the within instrument and acknowledged to me that heshe executed the same in hisher

authorized capacity and thatbyhisher signature on the instrument the person or the entity upon

behalfwhich the person acted executed the instrument

Subscri and om to before methidayof 201 l

Signature

My Commission Expires

Jc 22 2D1

NOTARIAL SEAL

NATALIE E GUZMAN
MY COMMISSION EE003182

Hoft EXPIRES June 22 2014
4079980153 Floddenbtary5ervicecam
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By execution hereby AVAHEALTH INC consents to entry of this Consent Order
agrees without reservation to all of the above terms and conditions and shall be bound by all

provisions herein The undersigned represents that heshe has the authority to bind
AVAHEALTH INC to the terms and conditions ofthis Consent Order

AVAHEALH1NC

By U v

r

Print Name

l

P

Corporate Seal Title C e

Date

1

OnQl before me personally appearedT
1

personally known to me or

proved to meon the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to

the within instrument and acknowledged to me that heshe executed the same in hisher

authorized capacity and that by hislher signature on the instrument the person or the entity upon

behalfwhich the person acted executed the instrument

Subscribed and orn t before me day of 2al 1

Signature NOTARIAL SEAL
gnature ofN b

My Commission Expires
NATALIE E GUZMANu 22 MY COMMISSION EE003182

o EXPIRES June 22 2014

407 3980153 FbrltlaNOlsryServicecom
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

 

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders 

of AvaHealth, Inc.  

 

We have audited the accompanying statement of the statutory basis admitted assets, liabilities, capital  

and surplus (deficit) of AvaHealth, Inc., as of December 31, 2010, and the related statement of 

operations – statutory basis, statement of cash flows – statutory basis and statement of changes in 

capital and surplus (deficit) – statutory basis for the year ended December 31, 2010.  These financial 

statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an 

opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.  

 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. 

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements.  An audit includes examining, on a 

test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also 

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as 

well as, evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a 

reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

As described in Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Statutory Reporting, these 

financial statements were prepared in conformity with the accounting practices prescribed or permitted 

by the State of Florida Office of Insurance Regulation which is a comprehensive basis of accounting 

other than generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

Pursuant to 624.424, Florida Statutes, the statutory basis financial statements were prepared in 

conformity with the National Association of Insurance Commissioners Accounting Practices and 

Procedures Manual, subject to any deviations prescribed or permitted by the State of Florida, which is 

a comprehensive basis of accounting other than generally accepted accounting principles. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.waterscpagroup.com/


   12195 WEST LINEBAUGH AVENUE                                                     12195 WEST LINEBAUGH AVENUE 

                       TAMPA, FLORIDA 33626 

TAMPA,  FLORIDA  33626                                  

                                                               TELEPHONE: (813) 855-4461 

                                                                FAX:  (813) 855-7536 

                    WWW.WATERSCPAGROUP.COM 
 

                                                                                                                                               AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF   CERTIFIED 

    PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  (AICPA) 

 

                                                                                                                                               FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED  

    PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (FICPA)            
 

ACCREDITED IN BUSINESS VALUATION (ABV) 

CERTIFIED FINANCIAL FORENICS (CFF) 

CERTIFIED FRAUD EXAMINER (CFE) 

CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER (CFP®) 

            

 

    
 

 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

(concluded) 

 

 

 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken 

as a whole.  The accompanying Schedule of Reconciliation of Differences, is presented for purposes of 

additional analysis as required by the Office of Insurance Regulation, and is a required part of the basic 

financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 

audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material respects in 

relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

In our opinion, the statutory basis financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 

respects, the admitted assets, liabilities, capital and surplus (deficit) of AvaHealth, Inc., as of December 

31, 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with 

the basis of accounting described in Note 2. 

 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming the Company will continue as a 

going concern.  As discussed in Note 8 to the financial statements, the Company has experienced 

operating losses and negative cash flows from operations in each of the last 5 five years, and its total 

liabilities exceeds its total assets as of December 31, 2010.  This raises substantial doubt about the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.   Management’s plans concerning these matters are 

also discussed in Note 9 to the financial statements.  The financial statements do not include any 

adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.  

 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors, stockholders and 

management of AvaHealth, Inc.  and for filing with the State of Florida Office of Insurance Regulation 

and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

 

   

 

  

Waters CPA Group, P.A. 
 

 

July 29, 2011 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 

 
STATEMENT OF ADMITTED ASSETS, LIABILITIES, CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) – 

STATUTORY BASIS 

December 31, 2010 

 

ASSETS 

 

ADMITTED ASSETS 

     

      Cash 

    

$      869,363 

Other receivables 

    
               579 

 

        869,942      Total current assets 

    

      TOTAL ADMITTED ASSETS 

   

 $       869,942 

 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

      CURRENT LIABILITIES 

     Accounts payable 

    

$      105,465  

Accrued expenses 

    

            7,436  

Claims payable 

    

     2,363,216  

Claims adjustment  

    

          21,000  

Advance premiums 

    

          73,453  

Aggregate policy reserve 

    

        100,579  

Broker commissions payable 

    

        500,000  

Reserve payable 

    

        450,000  

Other current liabilities 

    

          55,576  

Total current liabilities 

    

          3,676,725  

      Total liabilities 

    

          3,676,725  

 

CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

Common stock, $1.00 par value, 5,000,000 shares 

        authorized; 1,500,000 shares issued and outstanding 

 

      1,500,000  

Paid-in surplus 

    

      6,807,000  

Unassigned deficit 

    

    (8,298,151) 

Net loss 

    

    (2,815,632) 

      Total capital and surplus (deficit) 

   

         (2,806,783) 

      TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) 

 

    $        869,942  
See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

STATEMNTS OF OPERATIONS – STATUTORY BASIS 

Year ended December 31, 2010 

 

 

 

REVENUES 

     Premiums, net 

    

$ 12,960,084  

COST OF REVENUES 

     Physician and provider services 

   

      8,099,518  

GROSS PROFIT 

    

      4,860,566  

     

    

OPERATING EXPENSES 

    

    

Management fee 

    

      4,564,233  

Bad debt expense 

    

           68,864  

Insurance premium tax 

    

         235,537  

Bank service charges 

    

         104,368  

Collection expenses 

    

                  80  

Health reimbursement administrative expense 

  

             1,580  

Licenses & permits 

    

             3,934  

Postage 

    

                111  

Professional fees 

    

           63,559  

Broker commissions  

    

         500,000  

Reserve  

    

         450,000  

Administrative and marketing expense  

   

      1,686,861  

Miscellaneous expense 

    

             5,297  

       Total Operating Expenses 

  

      7,684,424  

      OPERATING  LOSS 

    

     (2,823,858) 

      OTHER INCOME  

     Interest  

    

             8,226  

NET LOSS 

    

 $  (2,815,632) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report 

4 

 



   12195 WEST LINEBAUGH AVENUE                                                     12195 WEST LINEBAUGH AVENUE 

                       TAMPA, FLORIDA 33626 

TAMPA,  FLORIDA  33626                                  

                                                               TELEPHONE: (813) 855-4461 

                                                                FAX:  (813) 855-7536 

                    WWW.WATERSCPAGROUP.COM 
 

                                                                                                                                               AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF   CERTIFIED 

    PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  (AICPA) 

 

                                                                                                                                               FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED  

    PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (FICPA)            
 

ACCREDITED IN BUSINESS VALUATION (ABV) 

CERTIFIED FINANCIAL FORENICS (CFF) 

CERTIFIED FRAUD EXAMINER (CFE) 

CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER (CFP®) 

            

 

    
 

 

 

AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL AND SURPLUS (DEFICIT) -  STATUTORY BASIS  

December 31, 2010 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Common  

 

Paid-in 

 

Treasury 

    

   

Stock 

 

Surplus   Stock   (Deficit) 

 

Total 

   

  

 

  

   

      

Balances at December 31, 2009  $  1,500,000  

 

 $  6,807,000  

 

 $            -  

 

$   (8,298,151) 

 

 $          8,849 

            
Net Loss 

  

               -  

 

                    -  

 

                -  

 

   (2,815,632) 

 

   (2,815,632) 

            
Additional Paid in Surplus                     -  

 

                    -  

 

                -  

 

                                 -  

 

                  -  

            
Less: Non-Admitted Assets - 

 

                    -  

 

                - 

 

                    - 

 

                  -  

   

  

 

  

   

  

 

  

Balances at December 31, 2010 

  

$  1,500,000  

   

  $  6,807,000  

   

$              -  

   

$ (11,113,783) 

  

 $  (2,806,783) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - STATUTORY BASIS 

Year ended December 31, 2010 

 

 

 

Cash flows from operating activities   

Net loss 

  

$          (2,815,632) 

Decrease in accounts receivable                                        73,431 

Decrease in other receivables                                   7,343,219 

Decrease in deferred tax asset                                        75,033 

Increase in payables 

 

                                       86,677 

Decrease in accrued expenses             (2,200) 

Increase in other current liabilities                                      930,540 

Decrease in claims payable 

 

     (8,051,274) 

Decrease in advance premiums                                                  (811,712) 

  Net cash (used) by operating activities:                  (3,171,918) 

  

  

    

Cash flows from financing activities 

 Decrease in receivable from parent                                        1,000,000 

Net cash provided by financing activities                                               1,000,000 

  

  

    

Net change in cash 

  

              (2,171,918) 

    Cash and cash equivalents, begining of year                                                                 3,041,281 

    Cash and cash equivalents, end of year                                     $           869,363 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See accompanying notes and independent auditor’s report 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 1: REPORTING ENTITY 

 

Nature of Operations  

 

AvaHealth, Inc., (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) is an accident and  health insurance 

company, licensed in the State of Florida by the Office of Insurance Regulation (OIR) on September 

22, 2005, pursuant to sections 624.401, 624.404 and 624.413 Florida Statutes.  The Company was 

incorporated in the State of Florida on July 8, 2005 and is located at 5440 Mariner Street, Suite 101, 

Tampa, Florida, 33609.   

 

The Company offers coordinated health insurance coverage and related services through a variety of 

plans for individuals and groups marketed through licensed agents and brokers. 

 

Currently the services are offered exclusively in the State of Florida. 

 

The total number of members as of  December 31, 2010  were as follows:    

       

            Individual     3,017         

 Small Group         89 

            Large Group          0 

 

The Company’s website is located at www.avalonhealthcare.com . 

 

AvaHealth, Inc. is 100% owned by Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as 

“AHH”),  a Delaware corporation. 

 

The Company is a member of an insurance holding company system as defined by Rule 690-

143.045(3), F.A.C.  Its latest holding company registration statement was filed with the State of 

Florida, as required by Section 628.801, F.S. and the Rule 690-143.046, F.A.C., on April 1, 2009. 

 

On July 1, 2009, the Company entered into an Management Agreement (“Agreement”) with AHH 

whereby AHH will provide the Company executive management and administrative services, 

marketing, accounting, claims processing, claims administration, claims analysis and reporting and 

utilization management services. 

 

Management fees of $4,564,233 were paid to AHH during the year ended December 31, 2010. 

However, during 2010, the Company ceased paying management fees to AHH and paid the 

administrative expenses directly to company vendors.  
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 
 

  

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 

 

Basis of Accounting 

 

The Company’s financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with statutory 

accounting principles (SAP) as required by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners’ 

(NAIC) Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual subject to deviations prescribed or permitted by 

the State of Florida Office of Insurance Regulation. The accounting principles applied in the 

preparation of the statutory-basis financial statements varies from accounting principles generally 

accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  The departures from GAAP relate primarily to 

the method of accounting used for certain assets and liabilities which are recorded under GAAP but are 

excluded from assets, liabilities, capital and surplus (deficit) for statutory purposes.  The statement of 

Reconciliation of Differences Between Audited Financial Report and Annual Statement  on page 22-23 

shows the GAAP presentation with the statutory adjustments, if any. Adjustments generally relate to 

non-admitted assets of prepaid expenses, related party receivables, deferred tax assets and EDP 

equipment as follows: 

 

 Certain assets designated as “nonadmitted,”  principally past-due uncollected premiums and 

other assets not specifically identified as an admitted asset within the Accounting Practices and 

Procedures Manual, are excluded from the accompanying statement of admitted assets, 

liabilities, capital and surplus (deficit) and are charged directly to unassigned surplus (deficit).  

Under GAAP, such assets would be included in the balance sheet at net realizable values.   

 

 Cash in the statement of cash flows includes cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments 

with remaining maturities of one year or less.  Under GAAP, the corresponding caption of cash 

and cash equivalents would include cash balances and investments with initial maturities of 

three months or less.  

 

 Deferred tax assets are limited to 1) the amount of federal income taxes paid in prior years that 

can be recovered through loss carrybacks for existing temporary differences that reverse by the 

end of the subsequent calendar year, plus 2) the lesser of the remaining gross deferred tax assets 

expected to be realized within one year of the financial statement date or 10% capital and 

surplus excluding any net deferred  tax assets, “electronic data processing” (EDP) equipment 

and operating software and any net positive goodwill, plus 3) the amount of remaining gross 

deferred tax assets that can be offset against existing gross deferred tax liabilities.  The 

remaining deferred tax assets are nonadmitted.  Deferred taxes do not include amounts for state 

income taxes.   

 

 

 

8 

 



   12195 WEST LINEBAUGH AVENUE                                                     12195 WEST LINEBAUGH AVENUE 

                       TAMPA, FLORIDA 33626 

TAMPA,  FLORIDA  33626                                  

                                                               TELEPHONE: (813) 855-4461 

                                                                FAX:  (813) 855-7536 

                    WWW.WATERSCPAGROUP.COM 
 

                                                                                                                                               AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF   CERTIFIED 

    PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS  (AICPA) 

 

                                                                                                                                               FLORIDA INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED  

    PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (FICPA)            
 

ACCREDITED IN BUSINESS VALUATION (ABV) 

CERTIFIED FINANCIAL FORENICS (CFF) 

CERTIFIED FRAUD EXAMINER (CFE) 

CERTIFIED FINANCIAL PLANNER (CFP®) 

            

 

    
 

 

AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

Basis of Accounting (continued) 

 

 

Under GAAP, state income taxes would be included in the computation of deferred taxes, a 

deferred tax asset would be recorded for the amount of gross deferred tax assets expected to be 

realized in future years and a valuation allowance would be established for deferred tax assets 

not realizable.  

 

 Certain other reported amounts are classified or presented differently in the financial statements 

prepared on the basis of SAP than they would be under GAAP.  Statutory requirements require 

that the financial statements of the Company be filed with state regulatory authorities.  

Accordingly, the financial statements are presented in a format similar to the filed annual 

statement, which differs from the format of financial statements presented under GAAP.  

Required statutory disclosures that are not applicable to the Company are not included in the 

notes to these statutory financial statements.  

 

 Recoverable amounts, if any, on unpaid claims under reinsurance agreements are netted against 

claims  and claim adjustment expenses payable and not reported as an asset as would be 

required under GAAP.  

 

 Consolidation: Wholly-controlled subsidiaries are not consolidated for individual entity 

statutory reporting. Under GAAP, financial statements of wholly-controlled subsidiaries are 

consolidated with the parent. 

 

 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three 

months or less to be cash equivalents. Statutory cash equivalents have a maturity of one year or less. 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, time deposits, money market funds, commercial paper and 

certain U.S. Securities. As of December 31, 2010, $769,363 was held in Synovus and Regions Banks, 

Tampa, Florida, business checking accounts and $100,000 was held on deposit with the State of 

Florida. 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 
 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
      

Solvency Deposit 

 

Pursuant to Florida Statute 625.041,  the Company is required to maintain an amount on deposit to help 

secure payment of claims. As of December 31, 2010, a certificate of deposit of $100,000 has been 

assigned to the Office to satisfy this requirement. This amount is included in cash and cash equivalents. 

    

Prepaid Expenses 
 

Prepaid expenses such as insurance premiums and contracts, are recorded as an asset on the balance 

sheet and amortized to expense in a systematic manner based on the period of coverage. As of 

December 31, 2010, there were no prepaid expenses. This is a non-admitted asset for statutory 

purposes. 

      

 

Premium Receivables and Revenue Recognition  

 

Premiums are billed monthly and are recognized as revenue over the period in which the Company is 

obligated to provide benefits to insured’s. Any medical premiums collected in advance are recorded as 

unearned premiums.  Other revenue is recognized when earned. Unearned premiums received in 

advance as of December 31, 2010  were $73,453. 

 

                

Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk 

 

From time to time the Company maintains deposits in financial institutions in excess of federally 

insured limits.  The Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 105 identifies these deposits as a 

concentration of risk requiring disclosure, regardless of the degree of risk.  The risk is managed by 

maintaining all deposits in high quality financial institutions. The financial stability of these institutions 

is monitored on an ongoing basis. On October 3, 2008, FDIC coverage increased from  $100,000 to 

$250,000 per depositor. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.  

 

Credit risk consists primarily of its cash, cash equivalents, reinsurance recoveries and premium 

revenue.  
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

 

Policy Acquisition Costs 

 

Policy acquisition costs related to contracts such as broker commissions, premium taxes and other costs 

are expensed as incurred. These costs had been paid by AHH according to the terms of the management 

agreement.  However, in 2010, AHH became insolvent and the expenses were paid by the Company. 

      

 

Property and Equipment 

 

Property and equipment are stated at cost.  According to SSAP 16, EDP equipment and operating 

system software are depreciated using the straight line method over an estimated useful life not to 

exceed 3 years. Furniture and fixtures are depreciated according to SSAP 19 using the straight line 

method over the useful life of the asset.   

 

Depreciation estimates calculated for financial statement purposes are based on straight line mid-month 

convention.  All property and equipment of the Company was fully depreciated prior to 2010 and no 

new assets were acquired during 2010. There were no indications of valuation impairment during the 

period ended December 31, 2010. 

 

Income Taxes  and Deferred Tax 

 

The Company is a C-corporation and calculates its state and federal income tax liabilities based upon 

the statutory rates currently in effect. It recognizes an asset or liability for the deferred tax 

consequences of temporary differences between tax bases of assets or liabilities and their reported 

amounts in the financial statements. Also, an operating loss, certain deductible items that are subject to 

limitations, and some tax credits arising but not utilized in the current year may be carried back for 

refund of taxes in prior years or carried forward to reduce taxes paid in future years. The realization of 

deferred tax assets is contingent upon the generation of taxable income in the future and the current tax 

rates and laws in effect for the year in which differences are expected to reverse. Management assesses 

future taxable income and tax planning strategies to determine the ultimate realization of deferred tax 

assets. 

 

The Company is required to file statutory financial statements with the State of Florida Department of 

Insurance Regulation.  Under Statement of Statutory Accounting Principles (SSAP) Statement No. 10, 

Income Taxes, Deferred Taxes, deferred taxes are limited to the  
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

 

Income Taxes  and Deferred Tax (continued) 

 

admitted portion of the deferred tax asset up to 10% of statutory capital and surplus (deficit) excluding 

net deferred assets.  

 

State income taxes are classified as taxes, licenses and fees in the NAIC Annual statement and as 

administrative and marketing expenses in the accompanying statement of operations.  

 

A.  Components of the maximum allowable 2010 deferred tax assets (DTA’s) and deferred  

  tax liabilities (DTL’s) are as follows: 

                                                                            
 

           Gross DTA’s                  $  2,850,000 

           DTA Allowance       (2,850,000)  

           Gross DTL’s                                     -                         

           Net DTA’s                       - 

             Nonadmitted DTA’s                      - 

             Net admitted DTA’s      $                - 

           

       Increase in nonadmitted DTA’s   $               - 
 

B. Unrecognized DTL’s: 
 

                    There are no unrecognized DTL’s in 2010. 

  

C. Current tax and change in deferred tax: 

 

Current Tax: 

                                                                                      

Current year income tax expense      -        

Prior year over accrual                  -  

Current Income taxes incurred              $             -   
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

 

Income Taxes  and Deferred Tax (continued) 
 

 

      D. Operating loss and tax credit carryforwards: 

 

1.  As of December 31, 2010, the Company has approximately $10,838,162 of unused net 

operating loss carryforwards available to offset against future taxable income. The 

valuation account is estimated at $2,800,000. 

 

2. There were no income taxes incurred in the current year and prior years that will be 

available for recoupment in the event of future net losses.  

 

 

     E. Consolidated federal income tax return: 

 

The company files a consolidated income tax return with the following entities: 

 

Avalon Health Holdings, Inc.  

The Avalon Agency, Inc. 

Weldon-Abbott Agency, Inc.  
 

A 2009 federal tax return has been filed.  An extension for the 2010 tax return has been 

filed.  

      

 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with statutory accounting principles and 

generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates that affect certain reported 

amounts and disclosures. These estimates are based on management’s knowledge and experience. 

Assumptions are also based on actuarially accepted quantitative and/or analytical methods in 

determining incurred and unreported claims (IBNR), deferred income taxes and various other accruals. 

Accordingly, actual results could differ from estimates. 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

 

Medical and Other Expenses Payable and Medical Cost Recognition 

 
Aggregate Policy Reserves  

  

Aggregate policy reserves represent a reserve for unearned premium income, a reserve for rate credits, 

experience rating refunds and rate stabilization reserve. As of December 31, 2010 the aggregate health 

claim reserve was $100,578. 

  

Health Claim Reserves Incurred but Not Reported 

 

The Company’s medical claims expense incurred but not reported (IBNR) are based on accepted 

actuarial methods and a review of the claims processed through April 30, 2011. A significant portion of 

medical costs include future hospital and future medical services payments. The liability for claims 

incurred but not reported is determined based on historical evaluations and statistical analysis of paid 

claims.   However, increased costs, catastrophes, competition, utilization and new governmental 

regulations can cause the actual health care cost to exceed the estimate. Although considerable 

variability is inherent in such estimates, management believes that the liability for unpaid claims is 

adequate. 

 
As experience develops and new information becomes known, the estimate and liability are continually 

reviewed and adjusted. Prior to 2010, an independent actuary issued a report on the adequacy of the 

provision. In 2010, there was no independent actuary report on the reasonableness of the IBNR.  

However, an informal review of the claims provision was made by an independent actuary as of April, 

2011. 

 

Based on the lag reports provided by The Loomis Company, third party claims processor, and the 

informal actuary review of claims and an analysis of paid claims through April 30, 2011, the health 

claims payable as of December 31, 2010 was estimated to be $2,363,216. 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 
Health Claim Reserves Incurred but Not Reported (continued) 

 
The change in claims and claim adjustment expenses (CAE) payable at December 31, 2010  is 

as follows: 

 

                                  

 

Claims and CAE payable at beginning of year      $   3,490,659 

 
 

Incurred related to: 

     Current year      8,432,798 

             Prior years        (333,280) 

  Total current year incurred                8,099,518 

 

Paid related to: 

      Current year      (5,852,294) 

Prior years     (3,374,667) 

  Total paid                (9,226,961) 

 

Claims and CAE payable at end of year                  $  2,363,216 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

     

Risk Management 

 

General Insurance 

 

The Company maintains comprehensive general liability, directors’ and officers’ liability, 

property, and business automobile insurance.        
   

  
Reinsurance  

 

The Company reinsured certain “excess” risks with reinsurance companies by ceding portions 

of risks and premiums.  Reinsurance does not discharge the Company from its liability to 

members for defined coverages.  In the event that the reinsurance company might be unable to 

meet its obligation under the existing reinsurance agreement, the Company would be liable for 

such amounts.  Management only reinsures with highly rated reinsurance companies.  The 

reinsurer is obligated to the Company for the excess claim costs as defined in the reinsurance 

agreement.  

 

Effective April 1, 2009, the Company executed a reinsurance agreement with HCC Life 

Insurance Company, which covers fully insured groups, individuals of major medical business, 

and employee leasing companies. The reinsurance agreement generally provides coverage for 

losses in excess of $150,000 for group and $200,000 for individuals up to $5,000,000 per 

member per policy period through the three layers of coverage.  This reinsurance agreement was 

terminated on March 31, 2010. 

 

 

For the year ended December 31, 2010, reinsurance ceded under the agreements with London 

Life totaled $4,595,228 and is reported as a reduction of premiums on the accompanying 

statement of operations.  Ceded losses under the agreements for the year ended December 31, 

2010 have not been settled. The risk reinsurance with London Life Insurance Company lapsed 

in February, 2010.  London Life Insurance confirmed that the Company did not owe a risk 

premium as of  December 31, 2010. 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Financial Statements  

         December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 2:  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

 

 

Statutory Reporting  

 

In 2001, the State of Florida adopted the National Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) 

Risk Based Capital Act of 1995 reporting requirements.  The State of Florida requires that insurance 

companies domiciled in the State of Florida prepare their statutory basis financial statements in 

accordance with the NAIC Accounting Practices and Procedures Manual subject to any deviations 

prescribed or permitted by the State of Florida Director of Insurance Regulation. 

 

NOTE 3:  EQUIPMENT 

 

SSAP No. 19 establishes statutory principles for the recording of furniture, fixtures and equipment 

(excluding electronic data processing equipment and software that is addressed in SSAP No. 16), 

leasehold improvements paid by the reporting entity as lessee, and depreciation of property and 

amortization of leasehold improvements. 

       

SSAP No. 16 sets forth the requirements in establishing the amount of admitted EDP equipment and 

operating system software (net of accumulated depreciation).  The aggregate amount of admitted assets 

shall be limited to three percent of the reporting entity’s capital and surplus (deficit) as required to be 

shown on the statutory balance sheet of the reporting entity for its most recently filed statement with 

the domiciliary state commissioner adjusted to exclude any EDP equipment and operating software and 

net deferred tax assets. 

 

                                  

 

  Computer Software $    1,312  

  Less Accumulated Depreciation      (1,312) 

  Assets less Depreciation              0   

  Less Non-Admitted Assets             (0)  

  Admitted Assets $           0   
 

 

NOTE 4:  CURRENT LIABILITIES 

 

Amounts due and payable within one year are classified as current liabilities.  As of December 31, 2010 

accounts payable, including medical claims payable was $3,676,725.  
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 5: Broker Liability, Other  Liabilities  

 

 

Broker Liability 

 

As stated in Note 1 Nature of Operations, the Company entered into a management agreement with 

AHH in which AHH agreed to provide marketing, accounting and financial support, claims processing 

and administration, claims analysis and statistical reporting, utilization management, and provider 

member relations. AHH contracted with an unaffiliated service company to provide claims 

administration and assistance with member and provider relations. Expenses under the management 

agreement with AHH that have been charged to administrative and marketing expenses totaled 

$1,686,861 in 2010.  Due to the insolvency of AHH in 2010, broker commissions were not paid on a 

timely basis.  Based on the review of partial accounting records through March 31, 2011 of broker 

payments, an estimated liability of $500,000 was recorded as of December 31, 2010.  The Company is 

currently negotiating outstanding balances with the brokers. 

 

Other Liability 

 

Due to the insolvency of AHH, management is aware that Company unreported liabilities may exist 

and a contingent reserve of $450,000  has been established solely as a safety reserve for financial 

statement purposes as of December 31, 2010. 

 
 

NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 

The company was a member of an insurance holding company system as defined by Rule 690-

143.045(3), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). Its latest holding company registration statement 

was filed with the State of Florida as required by Section 628.801, F. S. and Rule 690-143.046 F.A.C., 

on April 1, 2009.  Member ownership of AHH is reported in the Summary of Ownership and 

Relationships on page 24.  AHH and AvaHealth, Inc.  have certain common officers and directors in 

common. 

        

Transactions with Parent 

 

"Related party" shall mean that the party is related by reasons of common ownership or control by the 

organization furnishing the services, facilities, or supplies. AvaHealth, Inc. is owned 100% by AHH.  
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 

 

As stated in Note 1 Nature of Operations, the Company entered into a management agreement with 

AHH in which AHH provides marketing, accounting and financial support, claims processing and 

administration, claims analysis and statistical reporting, utilization management, and provider member 

relations. AHH contracted with an unaffiliated service company to provide claims administration and 

assistance with member and provider relations. Expenses under the management agreement with AHH 

that have been charged to administrative and marketing expenses totaled $1,686,861 in 2010. On 

December 31, 2010, the receivable of $1,392,095 from AHH, which consisted of payments of 

administrative expenses, was reclassified as administrative expense on the Company’s books and is 

included in this total. 
 

 

NOTE 7: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY 

 

Statutory Equity 

 

As of December 31, 2010, the company had 5,000,000 shares of $1 par value common stock authorized 

of which 1,500,000 shares were issued and outstanding.  The parent company, AHH, is the sole 

shareholder.  AHH made capital contributions totaling $0 and $1,000,000 for the years ended 

December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009, respectively.   

 

The maximum amount of dividends that may be paid by insurance companies without prior approval of 

the Office is subject to restrictions relating to statutory surplus and net income.  Furthermore, in 

accordance with the Company’s Certificate of Authority Consent Order, during the first three years of 

operations, it may only pay dividends that are approved in advance by the Office. The company did not 

declare or pay any dividends during the year ended December 31, 2010. 

 

Pursuant to Section 624.408, Florida Statutes, each health insurer shall at all times maintain a minimum 

surplus in the amount that is the greater of $1,500,000, or 4% of total liabilities plus 6% of liabilities 

relative to health insurance.  During 2010, the Company’s statutory capital and surplus (deficit) was 

$(2,806,783), which was not in compliance with 624.408, F.S. Minimum levels of equity are required 

to monitor an entity’s solvency.   

 

According to 624, F.S., the Company is required to file financial statements with the Office of 

Insurance Regulation of the State of Florida.  The financial statements are prepared in accordance with 

statutory accounting practices (SAP) prescribed or permitted by the Office of  
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 7: STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued) 

 

Insurance Regulation.  These financial statements are a departure from generally accepted accounting 

principles and the significant differences include certain assets (prepaid expenses and related liabilities, 

deposits, deferred tax, furniture, fixtures and equipment) not admitted under statutory accounting 

practices.  

Net Loss and Capital and Surplus (Deficit) of the Company on the basis of Statutory Accounting 

Principles (SAP) is as follows: 

    

Statutory Accounting Practices:  

 

 Net Loss $ (2,815,632)  

 Total Capital and Surplus (Deficit) $ (2,806,783)  

 

   

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 

  

    

 Net Loss $ (2,815,632) 

 Equity (Deficit) $ (2,806,783) 

 

See the “Reconciliation of Differences Audited Financial Report and Annual Statement” on page 22, 

for the GAAP, Statutory Annual Statement and prior year Statutory Annual statement. 
 

 
NOTE 8: FINANCIAL CONDITION AND CONSENT ORDER 

 
Operating Losses 

 

The Company experienced net losses of $2,815,632 for the year ended December 31, 2010,  a loss of 

$2,850,248  for  2009, a loss of $2,479,374 for 2008  a loss of $2,343,939 for 2006 and a loss of 

$564,125 for 2005.  The Company had net income of $145,797 for the year ended December 31, 2007. 

The company received additional capital contributions from its parent of $1,000,000 in 2009, 

$2,207,000 in 2008 and $300,000 in 2007.  
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

Notes to Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

NOTE 8: FINANCIAL CONDITION AND CONSENT ORDER 

 

Consent Orders 

 

On  May 5, 2010 the Company was placed  under a Consent Order (Cse No. 110187-10-CO) pursuant 

to Section 624.82, Florida Statutes  for the purpose of confidential administrative supervision for 120 

days. The consent order has been extended in order for the Company to successfully implement and 

complete a corrective action plan approved by the Office of Insurance Regulation. Extensions shall be 

renewed in one hundred twenty (120) day increments at the Office’s sole discretion.  

 

             

NOTE 9: SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

 

Stock Sale and Management Agreement 

 

On March 14, 2011, the company entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement (“SPA”) with CUSP, LLC 

to sell 100% of the stock to a CUSP, LLC, affiliate, Key Insurance Plans, Inc. (“KIP”).  As required by 

Section 4.1 (c) of the “SPA”, on April 1, 2011, the Company entered into a management agreement 

with AHH for management of the Company beginning on the date that the “SPA” is fully executed and 

continuing through the Closing Date (June 21, 2011). “KIP” shall be entitled to designate one or more 

persons to serve as executive management representatives for reviewing and approving business 

decisions involving the operations of administrative and management decisions of AvaHealth.  The 

assigned “KIP” representative shall be included in all activities, meetings, correspondence and 

decision-making processes as any other executive level manager of AvaHeath, including without 

limitation any correspondence with the Office of Insurance Regulation, Centers for Medicare and 

Medicaid Services and other licensing regulatory agencies. “KIP” Representatives shall become 

actively involved in the operations of AvaHealth; provided, however, during the period of the Office of 

Insurance Regulation’s review of the purchase of Avahealth’s shares, “KIP” will not make any material 

change in the operation of AvaHealth or Avalon or in the management of AvaHealth unless the Office 

of Insurance Regulation has specifically approved the change. Each “KIP” representative shall act in a 

strictly advisory capacity and shall have no authority to make any decisions for or on behalf of Avalon 

or AvaHealth. 

 

Capital Infusion 

 

On June 21, 2011, the sale closed.  On July 1, 2011 a reserve account of $4,500,000 was established by 

“KIP”. 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
Reconciliation of Differences Between 

Audited Financial Report 

and Annual Statement 

December 31, 2010 
 

     BALANCE SHEET 

 
          

                             2009 
    NON       NET              ANNUAL            ANNUAL                   

         GAAP      ADMITTED     ADMITTED  STATEMENT     STATEMENT 

Current Assets 

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 2) $ 869,363 $ 0 $ 869,363 $ 869,363       $    3,041,281  

 

Total Current Assets   869,363  0  869,363  869,363             3,041,281 

 

Other Assets 

Premiums Receivable (Note 2)  0  0  0  0        83,391 

Deferred and Recoverable Taxes (Note 2)  0  0  0  0    75,033 

Reinsurance Receivable  0  0  0  0             7,334,879 

Other Receivables         579    0        579  579        600 

Other Assets (Note 2)          0    0        0  0            0 

Receivables from Parent  0  0  0  0             1,004,035 

  

Total Other Assets  579  0       579  0            8,497,938 

  

Property 

Equipment (Note 3)  0  0                       0   0              0 

    

TOTAL ASSETS $         869,942 $                  0    $         869,942    $ 869,942       $ 11,539,219 

  

Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 105,465 $ 0 $        105,465  $          105,465 $ 99,557 

Accrued Expenses General (Note 2)  7,436  0  7,436  7,436  9,636 

Health Claims Payable (Note 5)  2,363,216  0           2,363,216  2,363,216  1,294,525 

Claims Adjustment  21,000  0    21,000       21,000                  69,052  

Advance Premiums (Note 2)  73,453  0  73,453  73,453  885,165 

Reinsurance Payable    0                        0              0                0             9,071,913            

Aggregate Policy Reserve (Note 2)  100,579  0  100,579  100,579       100,522  

Broker Commission Payable  500,000  0  500,000  500,000           0 

Reserve Payable  450,000  0  450,000  450,000           0 

Other Current Liabilities             55,576                0                 55,576  55,576                    0 

Total Current Liabilities  3,676,725    0     3,676,725         3,676,725     11,530,370 

 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,676,725                     0         3,676,725              3,676,725    11,530,370 

 

Equity (Deficiency) 

Common Stock  1,500,000  0  1,500,000  1,500,000      1,500,000 

Additional Paid In Capital (Paid in Surplus)  6,807,000  0  6,807,000  6,807,000      6,807,000 

Loss  (2,815,632)               0          (2,815,632)  (2,815,632)    (2,850,248) 

Retained Earnings (Unassigned Deficit)  (8,298,151)  0          (8,298,151)            (8,298,151)     (5,447,903) 

Total  Equity (Deficiency)  (2,806,783)                     0          (2,806,783)            (2,806,783)            8,849 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY  

     (DEFICIENCY) $ 869,942 $ 0 $          869,942   $           869,942       $ 11,539,219 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 
Reconciliation of Differences Between 

Audited Financial Report 

and Annual Statement 

December 31, 2010 
            

 

 

                 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 

 

 
GAAP 

 

NON 

ADMITTED 

 

NET 

ADMITTED 

 

ANNUAL 

STATEMENT  

 

2009 ANNUAL 

STATEMENT 

Premiums, Net  $    12,960,084  

 

0 

 

 $   12,960,084  

 

$   12,960,084 

 

   $     6,927,233 

Physician and Provider Services         (8,099,518) 

 

0 

 

      (8,099,518) 

 

       (8,099,518) 

 

        (5,295,000) 

Gross Profit          4,860,566  

 

0 

 

       4,860,566  

 

       4,860,566 

 

         1,632,233 

Operating Expenses         (7,684,424) 

 

0 

 

      (7,684,424) 

 

       (7,684,424) 

 

    (4,484,924) 

Operating Loss        (2,823,858) 

 

0 

 

      (2,823,858) 

 

      (2,823,858) 

 

   (2,852,691) 

Other Income and Interest                8,226  

 

0 

 

              8,226  

 

             8,226 

 

          2,443 

Income Tax (Expense) Refund                       0  

 

0 

 

                     0  

 

                     0 

 

                0 

NET LOSS  $    (2,815,632) 

 

0 

 

 $   (2,815,632) 

 

$     (2,815,632) 

 

 $     (2,850,248) 

CAPITAL SURPLUS 

ADJUSTMENT                      0  

 

0 

 

                     0  

 

                    0  

 

               0 

STATUTORY LOSS   $   (2,815,632) 

 

0 

 

 $    (2,815,632) 

 

$    (2,815,632) 

 

  $    (2,850,248) 
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AvaHealth, Inc. 

 
Summary of Ownership and Relationships 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AvaHealth, Inc. is 100% owned by Avalon Healthcare Holdings, Inc.,  a Delaware corporation. Andrew 

B. Cassidy and Charles T. O’Neill are officers of AvaHealth, Inc. and owners and officers of Avalon 

Healthcare Holdings, Inc. 
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O’Neill 
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Avalon Healthcare 

Holdings, Inc. 

 

AvaHealth, Inc. 

11.4% 
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders 

AvaHealth, Inc.  

 
ACCOUNTANTS’ DECLARATIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS 

 
We have issued our report dated July 29, 2011 on the statement of admitted assets, liabilities, 

capital and surplus (deficit) - statutory basis of AvaHealth, Inc.as of December 31, 2010, and the 

related statement of operations –  statutory basis, statement of cash flows – statutory basis and 

statement of changes in capital and surplus (deficit) – statutory basis for the years then ended. 

Pursuant to  624, Florida Statutes we make the following declarations: 

 
1. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP™, CPC  Engagement Partner, and the audit  team with 

Waters CPA Group, P.A. are independent with respect to AvaHealth,  Inc.  and conform to the 

standards of independence of the profession. Waters CPA  Group, P.A. is a member of the Peer 

Review Section of the American Institute of  Certified Public Accountants. The firm is current 

with the Peer Review requirements and received an unqualified opinion.  

 

2. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC,   Engagement Partner, is a Certified Public 

Accountant (CPA), Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE), Certified Financial Planner (CFP™), 

Certified in Financial Forensics (CFF), Certified Professional Coder  (CPC).  Sheryl has over 30 

years of accounting and auditing experience in the healthcare industry, as well as, governmental 

entities and insurance related industries. She is the recipient of the American Institute of 

Certified Public Accountants’ Governmental and Auditing Certificate of Education 

Achievement. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA is experienced in governmental and insurance compliance 

auditing.  

 

3. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC,  Engagement Partner, understands the annual 

Audited Financial Report, and the auditor’s  opinion thereon is filed in compliance with the 

Florida Statutes. The auditor understands that the Office of Insurance Regulation will be relying 

on this information in the monitoring and the regulation of the financial  position of AvaHealth, 

Inc.  
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ACCOUNTANTS’ DECLARATIONS AND QUALIFICATIONS 

(Concluded) 

 

 

   

 

4. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC,  consents to the requirements of Florida Statutes 

641.26 which require that the auditor consent and agree to make the work papers available for 

review by the Office of Insurance Regulation. 

 

5. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC,   has been licensed in the State of Florida as a 

Certified Public Accountant since January 27, 1994.  Her license number is 19412.  

 

6. Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP ™, CPC  has not been disqualified as an independent auditor 

by the Office of Insurance Regulation.  

 

 

 

 

 
____________________________________________ 

WATERS CPA GROUP, P.A. 

     Sheryl T. Waters, CPA, CFE, CFF, CFP™, CPC 

     Engagement Partner 

 

 

July, 29 2011 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

STATEMENT OF ACTUARIAL CERTIFICATION 
Pursuant to 

Florida Statutes 641.26, Rule 4-191.075 

December 31, 2008  

 

 

 

There was no independent actuary report for the year 

     ended December 31, 2010. 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  
 

REPORT OF SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES IN INTERNAL CONTROL 
Pursuant to 

Rule 690-137.002 

December 31, 2010  

 

 

 
This statement serves as notice to the officers,  members of the board of directors and to the 

Office of Insurance Regulation  that Avahealth, Inc. has material deficiencies in its internal 

control structure. The Company materially  misstated its financial condition as reported to the 

Office as of the balance sheet date currently under examination and failed to comply with the 

filing regulations.  The insurer does not meet the minimum  capital and surplus requirements 

as outlined in Florida Statutes.  

 

 

 

See the Internal Control Letter dated July 29, 2011 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  

 

NOTIFICATION OF ADVERSE FINANCIAL CONDITION 
Pursuant to 

Florida Rules 690.137.02 Florida Administrative Code  

December 31, 2010 

 

 

 

This statement serves as notice to the officers,  members of the board of directors and to the 

Office of Insurance Regulation  that Avahealth, Inc. materially  misstated its financial condition 

as reported to the Office as of the balance sheet date currently under examination.  The insurer 

does not meet the minimum  capital and surplus requirements as outlined in Florida Statutes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

See the Internal Control Letter dated July 29, 2011 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  

 

EVIDENCE OF ADEQUATE INSURANCE 
Pursuant to 

Compliance with Rule 4-191-069 

December 31, 2010 
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AvaHealth, Inc.  

 

Certification Statement 

December 31, 2010 

 

 

 

 

Certification of Officers 

 

We hereby certify that we have examined the accompanying financial statements and 

supplementary data of AvaHealth, Inc.  and, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the same are 

accurate and complete. 

 

 

______________________________________________Date__________________ 

Charles T. O’Neill, President 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       31 



























STATEMENT AS OF MARCH 31, 2012 OF THE  AVAHEALTH, Inc.

EXHIBIT OF PREMIUMS, ENROLLMENT AND UTILIZATION
1 Comprehensive

(Hospital & Medical)
4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Total

2

Individual

3

Group
Medicare

Supplement
Vision
Only

Dental
Only

Federal 
Employees

Health Benefit 
Plan

Title XVIII
Medicare

Title XIX
Medicaid Other

Total Members at end of:

1. Prior Year 

2. First Quarter 

3. Second Quarter 

4. Third Quarter 

5. Current Year 

6. Current Year Member Months 

Total Member Ambulatory Encounters for Period:

7 Physician 

8. Non-Physician 

9. Total

10. Hospital Patient Days Incurred  

11. Number of Inpatient Admissions 

12. Health Premiums Written (a) 

13. Life Premiums Direct 

14. Property/Casualty Premiums Written 

15. Health Premiums Earned 

16. Property/Casualty Premiums Earned 

17. Amount Paid for Provision of Health Care Services

18. Amount Incurred for Provision of Health Care Services
(a) For health premiums written: amount of Medicare Title XVIII exempt from state taxes or fees $  
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DWEY

OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION

Kevin M McCarty
Commissioner

IN THE MATTER OF

AVAHEALTH INCDBA
KEY INSURANCE PLAN

ORDER

1If M1Yf

OfPYC1 Ur
1klliUMlC

Dacket43y

CASE NO 12430912

T0 Bruce W Frieman

AvaHeaith IncdbaKey Insurance Plan
5440 Mariner Street

Tampa Florida 33b09

THIS CAUSE came on for consideration as a result of a review by the OFFICE OF

INSURANCE REGULATION hereinafter referred to as the OFFICE of the financial

condition ofAVAHEALTH INCDBAKEY INSURANCE PLAN hereinafter referred to as

AVAHEALTH The OFFICE having considered this matter and being fully advised in the

premises finds as follows

1 The OFFICE has jurisdiction over the subject matter and parties to this

proceeding

2 AVAHEALTH is a domestic life and health insurer authorized to do business in

Florida and subject to regulation by the OFFICE pursuant to the Florida Insurance Code

3 Based on the January 31 2012 Monthly Statement attached as Exhibit A

AVAHEALTH is impaired by six hundred eighty eight thousand seven hundred ninety sixUS
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Dollars 688796 In order to correct this on Friday March 16 2012 the OFFICE sent a letter

to AVAHEALTH informing them that in order to be in compliance with the capital and surplus

requirements of the Florida Insurance Code the company must deposit one millionUSDollars

1000000 by 12OOpm Tuesday March 20 2012 The OFFICE received notification from

AVAHEALTH on Tuesday Marci20 2012 that the money was deposited however through

verbal communications it was discoveredthatthe only signatory authority on the account is Enoc

Martinez and AVAHEALTH does not have actual control over the account Since

AVAHEALTH does not have actual control over the account the money is not available for the

payment of claims and therefore is anonadmitted asset and cannot be counted towards the

capital and surplus requirements of the company Therefore AVAHEALTH is impaired in

violation of Section 624408 Florida Statutes

4 All three officers reported on AVAHEALTHsSeptember 30 2011 quarterly

financial statements have resigned and are currently working for AVAHEALTH as AtWill

Independent Consultants AVAHEALTHsDecember 31 2011 and January 31 2012 monthly

financial statements report Enoc Segundo Martinez one of the indirect owners of AVAHEALTH

as President Mr Martinez does not have sufficient insurance experience to successfully operate

AVAHEALTH Therefore AVAHEALTH does not currently have sufficient and qualified

officers

5 In Consent Order I1o 1680211CO attached as Exhibit B in which the

OFFICE approved the acquisition of AVAHEALTH by Key Insurance Plan Inc projected

financial information dated May 13 2011 was submitted stating that contributed capital in the

amount of five million US Dollars5000000 would be infused into AVAHEALTH during

January of 2012 This contribution was a material element to support AVAHEALTHs2012
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growth and the OFFICEs approval of the acquisition transaction The capital contribution was

not made in January in accordance with the May 13 2011 projected financial information

6 Section 6244181ab and d Florida Statutes state that the OFFICE shall

suspend the Florida Certificate of Authority of any insurer determined to be in unsound

financial condition using such methods and practices in the conduct of its business as to

render its further transaction of insurance in this state hazardous or injurious to its

policyholders or any insurer who no longer meets the requirements for the authority originally

granted

7 Based onthe facts laid out above the OFFICE hereby finds that AVAHEALTH is

in unsound financial condition is using such methods and practices in the conduct ofits business

as to render its further transaction of insurance in this state hazardous or injurious to its

policyholders and no longer meets the requirements for the authority originally granted

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED THAT

1 The Certificate of Authority of AVAHEALTH shall be immediately suspended

until such time as AVAHEALTH is in full compliance withthe Florida Insurance Cade

2 Pursuant to Section 6244214Florida Statutes in the event that AVAHEALTH

does not present satisfactory evidence to the OFFICE that AVAHEALTH is in full compliance

with the Florida Insurance Code within two 2 years AVAHEALTHsCertificate of Authority

shall be deemed to have expired as a matter of law as of two 2 years from the date of

suspension or upon failure of the insurer to continue the certificate during the suspension period
b

in accordance with Sectian 6244212 Florida Statutes

3 Effective upon the date of execution ofthis Order by the OFFICE AVAHEALTH

shall
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a Cease writing airy anal all new or renewal direct business in the State of

Florida and issue no new insurance policies in Florida

b Not assume any risks located in the State ofFlorida

c Immediately notify all of its agents in writing that they are not to place any
I

new or renewal business with AVAHEALTH in the State ofFlorida

d Continue to file with the OFFICE all documents and information required by

the Florida Insurance Code and to pay all fees and taxes as if the Certificate

of Authority had continued in full force pursuant to Section 6244212

Florida Statutes

e Continue to honox all claims and liabilities arising under its contractual

obligations pursuant to policies issued in the State ofFlorida

4 The OFFICE will retain continuing jurisdiction over AVAHEALTH or its

successortoenfoxce the provisions ofthe Florida Insurance Code applicable to the satisfaction of

past current or future claims liabilities or other obligations ofAVAHEALTH which have arisen

or may arise in the State ofFlorida and to enforce the provisions ofthis Order

5 In the event AVAHEALTH fails to comply with any provision of this Order the

OFFICE may impose upon AVAHEALTH such further administrative penalties or other

appropriate remedies as authorized by the Florida Insurance Code

Page 4 of 7



WHEREFORE subject to the terms and conditions set forth above the Florida

Certificate of Authority of AVAHEALTH INC DBAKEY INSURANCE PLAN is hereby

SUSPENDED FURTHER all terms and conditions contained herein are hereby ORDERED

DONE and ORDERED this on day ofMarch 2012

1
1

1

Kevin M McCarty Commissio
Office of Insurance Regulation
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of this Order was sent by Certified Mail to

Mr Bruce W Frieman AvaHealth IncdbaKey Insurance Plan 5440 Mariner Street Taxnpa

Florida 33609 thisoday ofMarch 2012

atharin Sc ecker

ssistant General Counsel
Florida Office of Insurance Regulation
200 East Gaines Street

Tallahassee Florida 323994206

850 4134169

Catharineschoenecker@floir com
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NOTICE OF RIGHTS

Pursuant to Sections 120569 and 12057 Florida Statutes and Rule Chapter 28106 Florida

Administrative CodeFAC you may have a right to request a proceeding to contest this action by the

Office of Insurance Regulation hereinafter the Office You may request a proceeding by filing a

Petition Your Petition for a proceeding must be in writing and must be filed with the General Counsel

acting as the Agency Clerk Office of Insurance Regulation Ifserved by USMail the Petition should be

addressed fo the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation at 612 Larson Building 200 East Gaines Street
Tallahassee Florida 323994206 If Express Mail or handdelivery is utilized the Petition should be

delivered to 612 Larson Building 200 East Gaines Street Tallahassee Florida 323990300 The written

Petition must be received by and filed in the Office no later than 500pmon the twentyfirst 21 day
after your receipt of this notice Unless your Petition challenging this action is received by the Office

within twentyone 21 days from the date of the receipt of this notice the right to a proceeding shall be

deemed waived Mailing the response on the twentyfirst day will not preserve your right to ahearing

Ifa proceeding is requested and there is no dispute ofmaterial fact the provisions ofSection 120572
Florida Statutes may apply In this regard you may submit oral or written evidence in opposition to the

action takeir by this agency or a written statement challenging the grounds upon which the agency has

relied While a hearing is normally not required in the absence ofa dispute of fact if you feel that a

hearing is necessary one may be conducted in Tallahassee Florida or by telephonic conference call upon

yow request

If you dispute material facts which are the basis for this agencys action you may request a formal

adversarial proceeding pursuant to Sections 120569 and 120571Florida Statutes Ifyou request this

type of proceeding the request must comply with all of the requirements of Rule Chapter281062015
FACincluding but not limited to

a A statement requesting an administrative hearing identifying those material facts that are in

dispute If there are none the petition must so state and

b A statement ofwhen the respondent received notice of theagencys action

These proceedings are held before a State Administrative Law Judge of the Division of Administrative

Hearings Unless the majority ofwitnesses are located elsewhere the Office will request that the hearing
be conducted in Tallahassee

In some instances you may have additional statutory rights than the ones described herein

Failure to follow the procedure outlined with regard to your response to this notice may result in the

request being denied Any request for administrative proceeding received prior to the date of this notice

shall be deemed abandoned unless timely renewed in compliance with the guidelines as set out above
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THE MA7IERpg CASBNO 116802i1C0

Applfcatlon for the Acquisltlon ofall tho
Issued and OutstandlnVoting3eoudtlas of

AVAiI131LIHINCa Dorriestic Insurer by
ICEY iNfiURANCE PLANS JNC

ONSBIITORDER

THIS CAUSE came on fbr constderatlon upon the Illing with the OFFICE OF

INSURANCE REQULATIQN hareinaierroferrad to as the QFFICF of an application for

approval of the acquisltidtt of al of the issued and outstanding votig ecurltfes of

AVAYIBALTH INC heroinaRer referred to as CO1V1IANX a dorncstio insurer by ICBY

lNSJRANCB PYANB INC hereinafter rofbtxed to as APfLiCANT pursuant to 9eotian

628461 rlorlda Statutos Following a complete raviow of the entire ieord and upon

canslderadon thereof and being oilterwiae fhlly advised n the prernisna the OFFICl fluds as

foflows

1 The 0IIGE teas jurigdietion over the subeat matter and the parties to this

proceeding

2 APPLICANT has applied for and subJect to the pmsont and continuing

sutisfaotion of the xoquir4matite tormsand aonditlons established hexein kxas satiafactorlly met

Rags 1 of16
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ail of the oandltlons preccdvnt for the grattting of approval by the OlPICsof the prap4sed

acquisition ofall of the outstanding oapita stook ofCOMPANY

3 APPGICANT is aIlorida corporation that ie ono hundred portent 144 owned

by CllSPlIChoxelnalter roferrod to as CUSP a limdtcd liability company 1hvapplioation

ropresents that CUSP has a9 its managers the following lndivlduals redro CaretW Maria Paez

Z3rnesto Urdaneta aril Bnoa Sogundo Martinez The applioation also represents that Bruce

Frlernaa is a manager at large Por CUSP Said representatlans aro material to the lssuanoe of this

Consont Order

4 COMPtNY is a licensed iifp and health lnsuier domiciled In the state of Florida

ad is otto huadmd peroent 104 owned by AVAiONYIEALTtiCARla1IUIDINQ3 INC

horeInafter reParrod to as AHH orSlaLllt a Florida corporation

S On March ll2011 CUSP encored into a Shook Purchase Agreement with

SBLLBIt which was subxequently amended and restated and filedwith rho O1FJCiIon May 27

2011 whereby CC7Sxf or its designed would ac9uiro all of the issued and outstanding capital
stook of COMPANY CUSP has ropresanted that its designee shall be APkrLICANP The

aioramentioned representation is matorlal to the issuanco of this Consent Order Infarrrration is

missing Horn Section 24vlt Sohedule A and the Dledlosure Sohedule that Form the Amended

and ltestatvd Stack Purohasa Agreement APLICANT shall submit an executed copy of the

Amended and Restated Steak1urvhase Agreement to the C3FPICB far the OFFIGBs review

wtihtn thrca 3 business days floor the olostng oP the acquisition of COMPANY by the

APLYCANT The exeouted Ameiuled and itostated Stook Puraha4eAgreement subrnittsd b tho

4FF1C shall contain rho missing information within Sectlan 24 vii Sohedule A tho

pieolosure Schedule and any other schedules vxliiblta or related documentslhat effectuate the

Pogo x or ab
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Amendod attd Restated Stock Purchase Agreement APPLICANT SFILRand COMiANY

agrao drat the OFPICs approve of tho aaquisltion of CCMPANY by APPLICANT is

conditioned upon the OFFICI3s receipt and acceptance of the exeouted Amended and Restated

Stook Purchase Agreement APPLICANT SIaLIl3R and COMPANY rthar agree that this

Consent Ordex shall be docmcd void should the OIPtCF find the executed Amended and

Restated StookPurcltasa Agreement to ba unaoceptable

6 Pursuant to Schedule 22 of the Amended and Restated Stook Purohase

Agreement the liability of APPLICANT is linctlted howevex APPLICANT agrees that it is

acquiring all of the issued and csapital stock of COMPANY and the eforeraentioned liability

limitation shall orly serve to reduce the adjusted purohase pnlan of COMPANY APPLICANT

and CUSP agree that APPLICANT shall be responsible for all liabilities ofany kind alt behalf

of COMPANY and APPLICANT shalt pay all lcgltimate liabilities ofCOMPANY in a timely

manner cogattilless of any reinuburseaent limey or may not receive pursuant to Schedule 22 of

the Amended and Rostated Stook Purchase Agreement Additionally the parties agree that the

purchase price ofthe COMPANY shall be paid by CU4P or APPLICANT

7 Conourrent with the aaqulsltion the applleation represents that COMPANY shall

ohange its Hems to Kay insurance Plan Inc Final approval oithe Hama ohango la subjeot to

the recolpt of aCrtlflaato of Status issued by the Florida Office of the Secretary of State

reflecting the Hama ahsgo ss well ss any other requlrod docuxnantaionto validate a nemo

obange

8 APILIGANT slid CUSP have made material representations that Hans of their

offiaexs directors managers and shareholdexa holding flue porcent 5 or greatox awnorship

intorest and none oP the poetaoyuisldon officers and directors ofCOMPANY hsvo bean found

Page 3 of i 6
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guilty of or have pleaded guilty ar noio contandat to a felony or a raisderneanor other than a

minor traflla violation without regard to whathor a judgment of conviction was entered by the

Court

g APIYCANT and CSp reprosont that thoy lnavo with the exception oP noa

Segundo Martinez submitted connploto haokground itrformatlon on sash ofthe persona desarlbad

in paragraph eight 8 above and that isuch material Information has not been provided any

attoh individual shall be removed within thirty 30 days o receipt oP notlflvation liom the

OFFICE

10 APFYrXCANT andor CUSP ahaii submit or causo to bo submitted to the OFFICE

a biographioal affidavit authariry for release of information formitYiger print cards and

baokgrotand investigative report for Enoa Segundo Martimez within thirty 30 days of thedate of

theeeoution of this Conaont Arderl Xf tho baakground infarttaation four Enoo Segundo Martlne

blographlaal affidavit authority for release of information form Plttgerprint cards background

invoatigatlva report ftunishod to thn OFFICE or other soures utilized by the 4XFIC in lta

Investigatton process xaveal the representations rogarding Fttoc Segundo Mattlnoz in paragrapf

eight 8 above are inaGOUrato Enoo Sogundo MarHnex shall be removed within thity30 days

altar notiifloation by the OFFICE and replaced with s perpon aeooptable to the OFFICE

11 APPXICANT acrd CUSP agree iliac upon receipt of auoh uodfloatian 8bm the

O1FICE pursuant to paragraphs nine 9 and ton 10 abovo ifltlPXICANT andlar CUSP does

not tlrnvly take the required corrective actionAlPIICAhtTandorCUSPagree that suchfpilura

to sot would constitute att immodtate danger to thv publio and tho OFFICE tnay immddiately

suspend or rovoko the Cortiftoata of Authority of COMPANY without fluiher procoedings

pursuant to Saotlone 1205692nand 120606Fiorida Statutes

Pegb A of l6
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X2 APILICANT has filed and ihoOIPIC13 has railed upon the raprasentations in the

Pian of Operation and the Pian of Operations supporting documents that APPLICANT

submitted with the applieatlon Prior written approval must be scoured from the OFFICE prlgr to

any materlai deviation Flom saidtlan of Operation including expansion intu any other state

13 As required by Seotton 6A424 Florida Statutes COMANY has not filed

oomplate audited tittanoial reports for 2009or 2010 Therafora COMPANY shall filc with the

CFFICI within sixty 60 days from the eiosing of the acquisition of COMPAAEY yy

AFPIICANT a oomplete audited financial report pursuant to Seotian G24424 Florida Stahttvs

for the year ended Aoaember 3I 2010 The roport shah inoluda but not be limited tc an

Indopendent financial audit as ofIaeernbor 31 2p10 Further COMPANY shall not markoi or

enrolt any new busineHS until the 2010 independont financial audit hag boon filed with the

OFFICE and the OFlZCE hae provided written approval to resume mariceing and enraitmout

4 COMPANY shall amend andlor complete its 2010 Health Blank Flnanoial

4tafsment that wan faced wllVt the Nattottal Association of Insuranav Cotnnnisaioncra including
ali related reports and doaunants to ho couAistant with the financial audit eferonced in

paragraph thirteen1 abovaSuoh amendment shall bo tled with the National Agsoolaxiott of

insurance Contmissiorzers attd the AFFICE withist en 10 days of the iiiing of the 8nanciai

audit referenced in paragraph thirteen 13 above with the OPFICI3

1S APPTICANx ropresents that the information and dooumentatlon provided to tho

OlFIC13 avcurataly and aothplately describe all transaatansand agreornants pertaining to the

aoquiaitlon and theibturo actlvitloa ofAPALICANT and COMIANIAPPIrICANT rvprosents

that there era no othcx agreomant9 writtou or oral related to ooneidvradan to the SEiLLERg or

related to tiro management of theCOMPANY that have not beon provided to the nFF1CE

Page 3 of l6



l6 APPLICANT and 313LLtaR agree to obtain written approve ftom the AFFICE

prior to any material ohangos made to the Amended aad Restated Stoo1Clurahase Flgteemnnt

flom the date it was submitted to rho OFFICL3 to the alosing date of rho acquisition of

COMANY by APPLICANT

17 APPLICANT tmdlor COMPANY shalt provide to the OFFICE an accepttblo

executed diaatster ooordittatiunreaponsapian within thirty 3t7 days of rho date ofrho execution

of this Consent Ardor

18 APPLICANT shall provide evidence of a four million flue hundred thousand

U9bollaxs4500000capital infuslort into COMPANY withintueo3 business days oftle

closing of thg aoquisltion of COMPANY by the APkIICAN1

19 APPLICANT SIILLSR and CpIV1PANX ageeo that this Consent rdor shall be

deomcd void should alosing not take place vvithnElva S business days froth the data of rho

execution ofthis Consent Ordor

20 AIPLICANT has filed pro forma Iinanalal ataterrtonts for COMPANX that

indlcato that in addition to the capital lntuslon refexencbd in paragraph oighteen l8 above
APILICANTwilt need to provide additional capital lnfllalons into COMPANY Without said

capital infusions tho pro formasrofleat that COMPANY would be both irnpairad pursuant to

Soctlon b2440t3 Florida Statutes and In noncorrxptlptLCO with rho writing ratio requirements
outlined in Section 6244095 Florida Statutes CUSP shall provide additions vapitel inhtos

as nooessary in ardor to mainttin compltance rvlth Florida Statutes Ssid capital infusions are

material to the approval ofthis txansaotlon

21 COMPANY shall Elio with the OFPICg quaxterly and annual ftnanoial stateniontg

r
in aooordanue with SeoNon 624424 Florida Statutes COMPANY shall filemonthly financial
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statements until ftttthernotloa fYom thv OFFICE The monthly financial statements arc due on

orbalorathe twentyiifth25x day of the fbllawing month ltom the parted ending date he

monthly flnanaial statements shall inalutla thv Juxat pegs Assets Liabilities Capital tird

Surplus Statement of Revenue and Expenses Cash blow and Exhibit ofPremiums nrollnaent

and Utilizatlotr The Statement of Ravonuo and Expenses and Cash Plow shalt by tiled on a

oumulativo yaarrtodate basin Por monthly statements All statements shall bo in the ourr8nt

National Aseooiation oflntrrailoo Commissloners Form The COMPANStmay patltion the

OPlIGE to release COMPANY ftiom Its obligation to Ella monthly flnaiclal statements Iha

OIFIGE shall not unreasonabydeny GgMPANXs patltian regarding monthly flnaaial

statement requlrementa

22 CQMPANYis aubJeot to the holding aompany reglalratton requirements oRule

G901h3045 through Kule 69Q143047 Florida Adrnlnistrative Cada COMPANY shall fife a

holding company registratlan statement with the UI3FICE withiniftcen l5days after the end

of the month in whloh COMPANY is aoqulred by APiIIiICANT COMIANX shalllaep the

holding oompany raglstcation statamerrt euttent Affiliates shall mean any enHHas daftned by

Rule690143045 Florida Administrative Coda and includes CUSPIIG

23 COMPANY shall concoply with 9eotion 628371 I3lorlcla Statutes and Rule 69C7

143047lloridaAdminislratlve Codo as relates to the payment ofany divldanda

24 COIvIfANX shall obtain wxltten approves horn the OFFICE prior to snaking any

loans ox cash lnfbsiona to affiliates

25 1lthln sixty 60 days flom the data of the oxaoutian of this Consent Order

COMPANY shall file with the Dlvlslon ofInsurance Fxaud Aapartnnent ofFinanoiat Servlcas

raga of s



an acccsptabio updato to itsantifraud plan pursuant fo Section b269891 Florida Statutes and

Rule 69T2Florida Administrative Code

26 COMPANY shall submit all managomant contracts adminietraflve service

contrasts provider contacts and affiilatad contrasts as we11 as amendments to such contraots

to the OFICB for written approval prior to the execution andor consummation of such

contrast

27 The deadlines sat forth In this Consent Order may be extended by written

approval of the OIFIC13 Additionally file various reportingregttirements and aty other

provision or roquirement sot forth in this Consent Order may be altered or terminated by written

approval of the OFFICE Approval of any doadline extension is subject to statutory or

adrnlntstrativa regulation limitations

28 Approval of this applicatlon does not altar ar vacate any existing Consent

4rdors or corrective nation plans that may have been entered Into or between the OFFICE

and COMPANY oxoopt to ttte extent that the terms of prior Consent Orders or corrective notion

plans aanfliot with the term of tttia Consent Ordor

29 APPLICANT CUSP and SBIIER affirm and representthat all requlreraents set

brth herein and all statements explanations roprasentatlons and documents piovlded to the

OFFICE n aonnection with the application including all attachments and supplements thercto

are material to lice issuance of this Consent Arder AlPLTCANT CUBA andSLI13R further

afrtn and represent that the information documents and explanations provided to the OFFICE

arc true and fully doscribo all tYansactions agrebments and undertakings with regard to the

acqulxitlon and future operation ofCUMIANY
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30 Excoutlvv Order 13224 signed by PrasJdent Gcorgc W kuah on September 2

2001 blocks the assets of terrorlala and terrorist 9uppoxtoranizatlons identlftcd by the United
Scats1eparfmont of the Treasury Offtca of ljoreisn Assets Control 1he Bxeoutive Order also

prohibits any transactions by U9persons involved in thb blocked assets and intarosts Tho list

of identified terrorists and terrorist support organixatlona is periodically updated at the Treasury
Departments0Tioeoloreign Assets Control websJteiltwwWtagtggQy COMPANY

shall maintain and adharo tC procodures necessary to deteoY and pravont prohibited transactions

with individuals and entitiaa whioh have been Identlfi8d at the Troasury DepartmentsOffiao of

Foreign Assets Control wobslto

31 APPITCANTCUSP 9ETTaER andor COMiANY ahallroport to the 0FRZCT3

withttt sixty fu days flomj the date of the axaoutto of this Consent Order a oertlftcation
ovldonalsig connpllanco with all oftho raquiremonta ofthis Consent Order Any exceptions shall

ba so noted and oontaliied in the aertiflaatianPxceptloxs notod in the certification shall also

lncludo s timeline defining when the outstanding recluirernents of the Consent Order will be

oomplets Said oertlfSeation shall be submitted to the OTrYICIavia slcatronia mail and dircoted to

the attantlon of thv Aasistarrt General Couttaa representing the OFFlC1 this matter and as

named in this Consent Order

32 APPIICAN1CUSP SBTaTaRR and COMPANY agree that failuro to adhero to

one or more of the terms and conditions contained heroin shall result without urther

proceedings 1n the ravooation of COMPANXsCortlfioate of Authority in this stets In

scoordanco with Scationa 1205692n and 12Qti0CTlorlda 5tatutea

33 Eaah party to this aotlan shall boar its own costa and thee

rage 9 ofX6



3A AlPLiCANT CUSP sRLLERand CCMpANYexpressly waivo ahoaring In this

matter the making ofFindintsofFaot and Conclusions oxaw by the QiFTC1 and all flarthar

and otltar procvadinge horein to which patties may lie tntltled by law or rules of the QfPIC

APPLICANT CUSPBLLLR and COMPANY haraly krnowingly and voluntarily waive atl

rlphts to challenge or to content this Consent Order in any forum now ox in the ibture available

to it Including file right to any adminiatratlvo proceeding oirouit or federal court action ar any

appeal

35 Tho parties agree that title Consent Order shall be deemod to be executed when

theOrPIC has nxeouted a copy of this Consent Ordor bearing the signature of APPIaiCANi
CUSP SBLLI3R and COMPANY or Ita authorized representativoa notwlthstattding the faot that

tho copy may llavo bean transmitted to the OFFiCB aleotronealiy Further APPLICANT CUSP
S1fCSIt and COMPANY agreo that the signatures as affixed to this Consent Order ahallbe tinder

the coal aP aNotary Publio
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WHERF1ORiusubjaot to thetnns and oondltions sat forth above the QIFICL horoby

approvos rho appltcatlon for tree aoquisiNon of one hundred paroent a00 of the laeued and

oiuatanding oapltal atoak ofAVAH1ALTH 1NC by TBY MSURANCB PLAN4 1NC and

aubsequant to rho offectiva data of rite acquisition the Hama ohange of AVAHLAfrIFIiNC to

SCEY INSURANCI3IaAN INC By approving thla transaoion rho 4fiFICE dae not approyd

as part of this transaction Luny adm4nistrativa managomant provider or affiliate contxaats

aubinittvd with the application

FURTH17 all terms anti oonditlons contained herein era hereby ORDERED

DUNG and ORDERED thisay of 20t1

Kavln lYi McC y Coanrnisaloner
OfPica of Insurance Regulation

taolio16
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ayetoaudon hereby KAY NSVitANCK ANSYNCoonsents m enhyothis Canxt
Ardor agrees without reservation to ail of the abava terms and oandltidns and shall ba houritl by
all pmvisipzsherein The undersigned roproaente that bielahe has the aathorlty W bind KAY
INSURANCElIANS INCto the forms and aondltians ufthi Consent tJrdar

KBYINS CK P AjC

ay

Prlnt Name 13RiiCE FRx71MAt7

Corporate Seal Iikle CHIEF irXECUTxVE OFFICER

Dais JUNE 13 2011

l3 Il nt Wyrn rfare nos rerMrnlly dred

psrsonaliy lcnawa to ms trr

proveQ to ma on the bade ofsatiafiaotaryavdenae to be the parson wiwsa name aubscribod to

tho withn nsirumeztaxtd aaknowlodged to rno that helaha executed the samo in hleTher

authorizeQ aapaoity and that by higlhex signature abha instrument tho parson or the entity upon

bahaifwhich the porson uatedeceouted tho ittaent

Subsortbed and sworn to iron me this3day of n Ol l

Sign IVOTAItIAIr BEAU
lgnaturs ofNoypubil

My Commissionlxpires A yynsntnr

l J5I
NOAttY w3ec

j STAftaF FLORIDA
Comf6063608
trxplres 4162016
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By oxaoutiott hereby CUSPILC cansants bo exrtry of this Cogent Orderareea without

rosarvaton to all oithe above tornr and aonditians and shat bo bound by a1 praviaonsharain

Tho tindersgrtsd toprsa8nte that boalto has the authority to bind Ci7SP LLC to the tsrnna and

aaadiHanm of this Consent Order

Corporate Soai

G l3 bsfous trio Yt6 paraaaly appearodOn

ya L2 paxsonaly known to ma vr

proved to tno an the baaisr ofaatisfaotory evidanoe to botheporanwhoaa Hama is gubsarlbed to

tho within instzwixont and ackttowiedged a ma that halahc axeauted tho game in lilslher

authorized aapaoty acid that by hislltax sigaatwre on the inatrutnent the parson ar the entity upon

bautlfwhioh the psrsan anted oxcoutod the itontI
9ubsoribed andarn tobtou this day of V 4t1

Siguatura
oNatary

NOTARIAL SAI

NYy CuissioraBtreat

Iq rs
ANtWSTGY
NOTARY PU61tQ
8TATOfRtOR7A
COKm0083808
iptres 11Afz016

Pale of A6

xitlot
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By oxeouHonhoreo AVAIONkl1AGfktCARBEIOLDiITGts iNC eonRauts toenhy aiP
this Consent Orderareea withoutsoservatfon to a1 oftho sbevo terms and aondltions and ahali
ba bound by atl pmvlsions hexoliG The undorsigned treproseatsthat hoor oho hsa the authozity b
bindAAiON ik1BALldNt7TD1NC13 INC to the forms and aomiitlone ofthia Consent Order
sadhsa peraouai knowledge ofthe appliaatton and the lntbraon pzovidad thezeln

AV

Pr1nt Namot

5

r
Corpofata Sea Title

I1ato

w 1
Oa before me O personally appeared

ti

personally kaawn to me or

praveQ to mson fho basis of aatlsfhotory avidamca to ba the parson whose namo is aubscrl6ad to

the wlthlta instrumont and aotinowtadgat to zne that heshe exevuted tho same in hiQiter

authorlud oapaoity and that by hialher slgaature on the instzuraeattho person orthoentity upon

bohslfwhich ttteporsoa actedexoautod tha itustrumant

Subsorl and orn to befera me da of
w

2411
w Y

r

I30TAEtIAT SEAL

My Commlasivn BXplres
NATALIf QuxMAN

iMY CAMM13Si0NfpEO091A
EXPIRES June Z2 2014

7 tag PldddeNpte 9orvkeaom

r
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1

I

By exeouflon herebyAVAIdEAiTH INC consents to entry o this Consent Qrder
agrees without reservation to all of the above tetras and aonditions and shall be bound by all
previsions heroin he undersigned repreenta that leelabs has the authority to bind
AVAHSALTIIINC to the forms and conditions of this Consent Order

AVAHBAT INC

ay
r

rtntName Pte

Corporate coal Title

OnQl before me personally appeared

porsonally known to me or

proved to rtceontla basis ofeatlsfactory evldsnco to ba the pexsan whale Hama is sabsaribad to

the within Instrument and acknowledged to ma that hsshe oxaouted the saaxe in leishear

authoxlxed capacity and thatby hialher signature on the instrument the parson or the entityupon

behalfwhich the person acted executed tho instrument

Subscribed and amt before ma day of g20X 1

Signature NOTARIAL SBAi
nalure ofN b

My Commission Expires

aoi

NATAIIQ WUZMAt
MY COMMISSION p03162

EXPIR6Jana 22 2a14
1e3 FbtldaNoee Service
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l3ruce W Friexnan DO CEO
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5440 Mariner Street Suite 110
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Charles TONeill
Avalon Healthoare Holdings Inc
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San Antonio TX 78240
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Life Health Financial Oversight
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Tallahassee Florida323990327

Jason Nelson Senior Attorney
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Legal Services Office
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612 Larson Building
Tallahassee Florida 323994206
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Docketed by

KEVIN MMCCARTY
COMMISSIONER

IN THE MATTER OF

AVAHEALTH INCDBA
KEY INSURANCE PLAN

a

OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION

FINAL ORDER TO CEASE AND DESIST

CASE NO 12496712

THIS MATTER came on before the undersigned Insurance Commissioner of the State of

Florida for consideration and final agency action who having considered the record in this case

and being fully advised ofthe premises finds and orders as follows

1 On April 19 2012 a Cease and Desist Order attached as Exhibit A and

hereinafter incorporated by reference was issued by the Office of Insurance Regulation

hereinafter Office notifying AvaHealth Inc dba Key Insurance Plan hereinafter

AvaHealth that they were charging rates in excess of the rates authorized by the Offtce in

violation of Section 6274106Florida Statutes

2 The Cease and Desist Order was sent to AvaHealth byUSCertified Mail There

has been no request fpr a proceeding to challenge or contest the action taken by the Office

3 The Office has jurisdiction over AvaHealth for purposes ofthis action



IT IS HEREBY ORDERED

4 The findings offact and conclusions of law contained in the April 19 2012 Cease

and Desist Order are hereby ADOPTED and INCORPORATED into this Final Order to Cease

and Desist

S AvaHealth shall forthwith CEASE AND DESIST from charging rates in excess of

the rates authorized by the Office Further AvalIealth shall offer reinstatement to any insureds

who did not renew based on the wiauthorized rates and refund to its insured and former insureds

premiums received from the unauthorized

rateas
determined by the Office

DONE AND ORDERED this day of 2012

vinM McCarty Commissioner

Office of Insurance Regulation



P10TICE OF RIGHTS

Any party to these proceedings adversely affected by this Order is entitled to seek review

of this Order pursuant to Section 12068 Florida Statutes and Rule 9110 FIa R App P

Review proceedings must be instituted by filing apetition or notice of appeal with the General

Counsel for the OFFICE of Insurance Regulation acting as the Agency Clerk at 612 Larson

Building Tallahassee Florida 32399 and filing a copy of the same with the appropriate District

Court ofAppeal within thirty 30 days ofrendition ofthis Order

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that atruetd correct copy ofthe foregoing Final Order to Cease

and Desist has been furnished this day of 2012 by certified mail to

Ms Karen Connolly CEO

AvaHealth IncdbaKey Insurance Plan

5440 Mariner Street

Tampa FL 33609

a S cker

ssistant General Counsel
Florida Bar Number 0084658
Office ofInsurance Regulation
Division ofLegal Services
200 East Gaines Street

Tallahassee Florida 32399

Telephone 850 4134169
Facsimile 850 9222543
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Kevin M McCarty
Commissioner

OFFICE OF INSURANCE REGULATION
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IN THE MATTER OF

AVAIIEALTH INCDBA
KEY INSURANCE PLAN

CEA E AN DESIST ORDER

TO Karen Connolly CEO

AvaHealth Inc dbaKey Insurance Plan

5440 Maxiner Street
Tampa Florida 33609

CASE NO 12496712

YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED that pursuant to the Florida Insuxance Code including

Sections 624307 and 624310 Florida Statutes the State of Florida Office of Insurance

Regulation hereinaftex referred to as the OFFICE had cause to make an investigation of

certain insurance related activities of AVAHEALTH INC DBAKEY INSURANCE PLAN

hereinafter referred to as AVAHEALTH in the State ofFlorida and has information that the

aforementioned compaxly inappropriately implemented approved rate increases resulting in

unauthorized rates in violation of Section 6274106Florida Statutes for the past two 2 years

Accordingly the OFFICE intends to enter a Final Order requiring the abovereferenced party to

cease and desist from charging unauthorised rates in violation of Section 6274106Florida

Statutes to offer reinstatement to any insureds who did not renew based on the unauthorized

rates and to refund to its insuxeds and former insureds premiums received from the unauthorized

rates as determined by the OFFICE
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AS a result of its investigation and as grounds for entry ofthis Order the OFFICE hereby

finds and alleges as follows

1 The OFFICE has jurisdiction over the subject matter and parties to this

proceeding

2 AVAIIEALTI is a domestic life and health insurer authorized to do business in

Florida and subject to regulation by the OFFICE pursuant to the Florida Insurance Code

3 Section 6274105Florida Statutes requires every health insurer doing business

in the State ofFlorida to use only rates that have been approved by the OFFICE

4 On February 3 2012 the State of Florida Division of Consumer Services

Department of Financial Services hereinafter DEPARTMENT received a consumer

complaint that AVAHEALTHs xates had greatly increased On March 13 2012 the

DEPARTMENT received a second complaint of similar natuxe

S The DEPARTMENT began an investigation into this complaint and as part of

this investigation one consumea provided the DEPARTMENT with correspondence between

themselves and AVAHEALTH regarding their large renewal rate increase

6 This information was forwarded to the OFFICE and the OFFICE began an

investigation into the large rate increases Based on the information contained in the

correspondences sent to the DEPARTMENT stating that there was a488 increase in the xate

the OFFICE knew that this could notbecorrect as the OFFICE had not approved arate increase

greater than 10

7 The OFFICE then requested that AVAHEALTH submit a spreadsheet to the

OFFICE showing the previous rate andthe rate that insureds werechaxged at the March April

and May renewals
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8 On April 5 2012 the OFFICE received the spreadsheet fromAVAIEALTH and

the spreadsheet showedwidespread rate increases far in excess ofthe approved 10 increase

9 The OFFICE finds that AVAHEALTH has been charging xates far in excess of

the rate authorized by the OFFICE

WHEREFORE pursuatto the Florida Insurance Code including Sections 624307 and

624310FloridIStatutes the OFFICE finds that because AVAHEALTH has been charging rates

in excess of the rates authorized by the OFFICI in violation of Section 6274106 Florida

Statutes the OFFICE intends to enter a Final Order to Cease and Desist the use of unauthorized

rates

DONE and ORDERED this day ofApril 2012

Kevin M McC y Comrilissio
Office of Insurance Regulation
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy ofthis Order was sent by Certified Mail to

Ms Karen Connolly AvaHealth Inc dba Key Insurance Plan 5440 Mariner Street Tampa
Florida 33609 this qday ofApril 2012

tharine oe ker
Assistant General Counsel
Florida Office of Insurance Regulation
200 East Gaines Street

Tallahassee Florida 323994206

8504134169
Catharineschoenecker@floircom
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NQTIGEOF RIGIS

Pursuant to Sections 120569 and 12057 Florida Statutes and Ruie Chapter 28106 Florida
Administrative CodeFACyou may have a right to request a proceeding to contest this action by the
Office of Insurance Regulation hereinafter the Office You may request a proceeding by filing a

Petition Your Petition for s proceeding must be in wrlting and must be filed with the General Counsel
acting as the Agency Clerk Office of Insurance Regulation Ifserved by US Mail the Petition should be

addressed to the Florida Office of Insurance Regulation at 612 Larson Building 200 East Gaines Street
Tallahassee Florida 323994206 If Express Mail or handdelivery is utilized the Petition should be
delivered to 612 Larson Building 200 East Gaines Street Tallahassee Florida 323990300 The written
Petition must be re i by and filed in the Office no later than 500pmon the twentyfirst 21 day
after your receipt of this notice Unless your Petition challenging this action is received by the Office

withintwentyone 21 days from the date ofthe receipt of this notice the right to a proceeding shall be
deemed waived Mailingthe response on the twentyfirstday will not preserve your right to ahearing

Ifa proceeding is requested and there is no dispute of material fact the provisions of Section 120572
FloridaStatutes may apply In this regard you may submit oral or written evidence in opposition to the
action taken by this agency or a written statement challenging the grounds upon which the agency has
relied Whiie a hearing is normally not required in the absence ofa dispute of fact if you feel that a

heaxing is necessary one may be conducted in Tallahassee Florida or by telephonic conference call upon
your request

If you dispute material facts which are the basis for this agencys action you may request a formal
adversarial proceeding pursuant to Sections 120569 and 20571 Florida Statutes Ifyou request this
type ofproceeding the request must comply with all of the requirements of Rule Chapter21062015
FAC including but not limfted to

a A statement requesting m administrative hearing identifying those material facts that are in

dispute Ifthere are none the petition must so state and

b A statement ofwhen the respondent received notice ofthe agencysaction

These proceedings are held before a State Administrativo Law Judge of the Division of Administrative
Hearings Unless the majority ofwitnesses are located elsewhere the Office will request that the hearing
be eonduoted in Tallahassee

In some instances you may have additional statutory rights than the ones described herein

Failure to follow the procedure outlined with regard to your response to this notice may result in the

request being denied Any request for administrativeproceedingreceived prior to the date of this notice
shall be deemed abandoned unless timely renewed incompliance with the guidelines as set out above
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